
City of Swartz Creek 
AGENDA 

Regular Council Meeting, Monday, June 8, 2015, 7:00 P.M. 
City Hall Building, 8083 Civic Drive Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 

1. CALL TO ORDER:

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

3. ROLL CALL:

4. MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES:
4A. Council Meeting of May 26, 2015 MOTION Pg. 20 

5. APPROVE AGENDA:
5A. Proposed / Amended Agenda MOTION Pg. 1 

6. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS:
6A. City Manager’s Report (Agenda Item) MOTION Pg. 2 
6B. FOIA Policies  Pg. 28 
6C. Monthly Reports (Police, DPW, Check Register, Budget, Building) Pg. 41 
6D. Fiscal Year 2016 Draft Budget Detail (Agenda Item) Attached 
6F. Tax Foreclosure List and Maps  Pg. 67 
6G. Draft Fireworks Ordinance (Agenda Item) Pg. 73 
6H. Traffic Signal Summary Report (Agenda Item)  Pg. 80 
6I. Dye Road Property Map (Agenda Item)  Pg. 94 
6J. Family Farm & Home Violation Documentation (Agenda Item)  Pg. 95 
6K. Comcast Service Notice  Pg. 103 
6L. MML Liability and Property Insurance Renewal  Pg. 104 

7. MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:
7A. General Public Comments

8. COUNCIL BUSINESS:
8A. Veterans’ Memorial Committee & Friends Donation 
8B. Fireworks Ordinance  
8C. Traffic Signal Removal  

PRESENTATION 
DISC  
RESO  Pg. 11 

6D. Family Farm and Home Special Land Use RESO Pg. 12 
6E. Dye Road Lots  RESO Pg. 13 
6F. Liability and Property Insurance Renewal RESO Pg. 13 
8G. Fiscal Year 2016 Budget RESO Pg. 14 

9. MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:

10. REMARKS BY COUNCILMEMBERS:

11. ADJOURNMENT: MOTION 

City Council Packet 1 June 8, 2015



 
City of Swartz Creek 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
Regular Council Meeting of Monday, June 8, 2015 - 7:00 P.M. 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem & Council Members 
FROM: Adam Zettel, City Manager 
DATE:   June 3, 2015 
 

ROUTINE BUSINESS – REVISITED ISSUES / PROJECTS 
 
 RACEWAY STATUS (Update) 

The raceway has dropped their appeal for 2014, but they have filed for 2015. This is 
great news! Monies that the downtown development authority was encumbering with 
the intention of refunding can now be counted as unrestricted revenues. I suspect the 
strategy is revolving around the marketing of the track, and this will be resolved upon 
sale. For more information pertaining to the appeal, please see prior meeting packets.  
 
Concerning the marketing, there is not much happening as far as we can tell. We held 
off on rezoning because the owner wanted to do some research and work with us on a 
plan, but that simply has not happened. Obviously, we should work with them to the 
extent that they are willing. However, as we move forward with the master plan, I think 
it is clear that we cannot wait for them to come to the table to do what is in the interest 
of the community.  
 

 DOWNTOWN PARKING LOTS (Update) 
All improvements are complete. We are now closing the grants administratively.  

 
 STREETS (See Individual Category) 

 
 MORRISH ROAD CLASSIFICATION-BRIDGE CAPACITY (Update) 

Morrish Road has been submitted for classification as a “minor arterial” from a 
“major collector”.  The MDOT is reviewing this and should respond before August. 
 

 MILLER ROAD RESURFACING PROJECT (Update) 
Crews are onsite and are working on the segment from Tallmadge Court to Dye.  
 

 20 YEAR STREET PLAN (No Change of Status) 
At this point, we await action by the State of Michigan. The initial proposal release 
by the Speaker of the House appeared really bad. Pardon my lack of 
professionalism, but there is not much about it that would have been functional or 
beneficial to our community. I have included an article. Note that we are a non-
partisan city, and I do not opine on this matter in a partisan fashion. There is not a 
proposal out there, irrespective of party affiliation, which appears to benefit our 
community. 
 
See the May 11 report for prior details. 
 

City Council Packet 2 June 8, 2015



 2015 STREET BIDS-SCRAP TIRE GRANT (Update) 
The city is moving forward with engineering of the intersections of Winston and 
Miller, as well as Fairchild and Miller.  We expect this work to be done after school 
releases in 2016. 
 

 WATER – SEWER ISSUES PENDING (See Individual Category) 
 SEWER REHABILITATION PROGRAM (No Change of Status) 

The city is moving forward with relining of portions of the Worchester Drive sewer 
line and inspection of sections of Seymour, Greenleaf, Durwood, Valleyview, 
Birchcrest, Chesterfield, and Chelmsford as approved at the January 26th meeting. 
The scope of work is estimated to cost $146,320. However, there may be some 
portions of the project that will require a change order for the purposes of doing a 
partial excavation where lining is not practical. I will be back with more details. 
 

 KWA (No Change of Status) 
The KWA water pipeline project is currently under budget and on schedule. We 
should be online in 2016.  
 

 STORM SEWER (No Change of Status) 
This draft storm water agreement that was presented to the council last month is 
now in final form, and the county is requesting its approval. The agreement enables 
limited cooperation with the county to perform specific functions related to the 
Phase II Stormwater Regulations. This is done for a pro-rated fee, estimated to be 
$4,200 for this year.  Staff will take a closer look at terms and be back with a 
recommendation. 
 

 WATER LOSS (No Change of Status) 
We will continue to monitor the situation. 
 

 WATER RATES (No Change of Status) 
Nothing is official yet, but the county is indicating a 16% increase in water rates. 
This is terrible news for a commodity that has risen in cost dramatically in recent 
years. Staff is assessing the impact and will report back to the city council shortly. 
Given the increases that the city passed along recently, this is a problematic 
increase. As the council is aware, the problem is Detroit Water and Sewer Authority. 
Sewer rates are very stable, with that service being provided by the Genesee 
County Drain Commission-Water and Waste Services Division. Until local control is 
exercised over water via the Karegnondi pipeline, we can expect Detroit to continue 
to lash out. With that said, we may be able to absorb some rate increase if it is only 
temporary in nature. While it is a stretch to assume that the KWA will offer lower 
rates, it is more likely every time a double digit rate increase is passed from Detroit. 
An article from the Detroit News is attached. 

 
 PERSONNEL:  POLICIES & PROCEDURES (No Change of Status) 

A committee has been appointed to review the handbook. Once the attorney’s office 
gives it a look, we will start the review process. 

 
 4438 MORRISH ROAD (No Change of Status) 

City Council Packet 3 June 8, 2015



The DDA is revisiting this issue. It was noted previously that the council had concerns 
about event parking that currently uses this land, as well as the potential to move 
Fortino Drive to the north. The board also considered the financial implications of 
planning for this site, as well as the timing of the city master plan.   
 
Before proceeding with some potential plans, the board desires a nod from the council 
as well as a clear budget picture for the DDA, likely to occur in April. The DDA would 
like to see a future joint meeting between the DDA and planning commission and/or city 
council.  
 
I put this on again as a discussion item to better ascertain the city council’s intention 
with this property. With a better understanding of the issues at stake and how they may 
or may not have been addressed to date, the DDA can better understand their role. If 
there is no objection, they would like to proceed with creating a development option for 
the site that can be presented to the planning commission and city council for comment 
and review. 
 
Background on this issue is included in the April 13, 2015 report.              
 

 SHARED SERVICES, POLICE DEPARTMENTS (Update) 
There is a possibility that costs relating to the merger, including legal fees and other 
expenses, may be covered by a third party grant. The city and township presented the 
initiative to a few funding interests on May 26, and the feedback was very positive.  I 
will keep the council informed. We expect to begin drafting a working agreement for 
joint services after the beginning of the new fiscal year. 

 
 SPRINGBROOK EAST & HERITAGE VACANT LOTS (Update) 

Following are issues pending for the three Associations: 
 

SPRINGBROOK COLONY SPRINGBROOK EAST HERITAGE VILLAGE 

No outstanding issues No outstanding issues Seek solution for 4 vacant lots 
owned by city. 

 
Units continue to sell in Springbrook East and are under construction. Related to this, 
the association has expressed interest in making a final determination concerning lot 
sale proceeds resulting from the sales. This interest is based upon prior resolutions by 
the city council that express an intention to allow such proceeds to offset some of the 
assessed street costs related to the development failure and subsequently incurred by 
homeowners of the association. I expect the association to formalize a request within 
the next month for consideration by the city council.  
 
I agree that the time is right to do so. The city has sold six of the twelve lots, and I 
expect that the others will sell within a year. The city has $2,535.50 into each lot sold. 
Total proceeds will total $105,168.50 for all twelve lots, leaving $74,742.50 
unencumbered by previous inputs. 

 
 MEIJER COMMUNITY DONATION (No Change of Status) 

I have contacted Meijer, and they definitely wish to have a public event to 
commemorate their contribution to the community.  Perhaps a recognition of their 
donation along the Veteran’s walk on Fortino would be appropriate during Memorial 
Day.   

City Council Packet 4 June 8, 2015



 
 WINCHESTER WOODS LOTS (No Change of Status) 

If there is no objection, the planning commission and city council can look to address 
this issue in the 2015 master plan.  For the time being, we may look to add some 
asphalt millings to the streets to make them passable. Since this is a platted 
subdivision with public streets, the city is in a position to provide access to the lots by 
owners for maintenance. 
 
The original report is included in the April 13, 2015 report. 
 

 NEWSLETTER (No Change of Status) 
The next edition of our community newsletter is expected to be distributed in October. 
Let me know if you wish to supply content or desire to see specific information covered 
in this edition.  
 

 MEDICAL MARIJUANA MORATORIUM (No Change of Status) 
The council placed a moratorium on medical marijuana dispensaries and growing 
facilities, effective April 23, 2015. This is a 180 day moratorium that is set to expire at 
the end of October. Among other reasons, the moratorium was put in place to better 
prepare for pending state legislation that would dramatically alter the playing field.  
 
The planning commission will be considering this issue. If legislation is not passed 
soon, we should consider amending the ordinance based upon draft versions or other 
options in lieu of moratoriums.   
 

 RENTAL REGISTRATION AND INSPECTIONS (No Change of Status) 
We are very close to having a final version of this ordinance, along with the 
administrative forms and procedures. Since, there was not any comment on the draft 
ordinance and supporting documentation at the first meeting in April, it appears we will 
be ready for approval as soon as the attorney signs off on it.  
 
We are taking a closer look at the “crime free lease addendum” that is used in the state 
and is being considered by Grand Blanc. This was brought to our attention during a 
Small Cities meeting. Take a look. A synopsis follows: 
 

The Crime Free Lease Addendum does not require eviction of a tenant for one 
criminal incident.  The addendum provides the rental property owner the tool and 
ability to deal with a problem if the owner chooses or needs to.  The addendum 
was developed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development and is used 
by housing authorities.  Evictions based on this concept were upheld by the US 
Supreme Court in 2002 (see Oakland Housing Authority v. Rucker and Department 
of Housing and Urban Development v. Rucker).  

 
 K9 UNIT (Update-Agenda Item) 

There will be recognition of the Veterans’ Memorial Committee & Friends group at the 
meeting. They held a fundraiser the week of May 25 and raised $5,700 for Ike’s 
replacement.  
 

 FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT UPDATES (Update) 

City Council Packet 5 June 8, 2015



There have been changes to the state Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) which 
outlines a number of new requirements for local governments (Public Act 563 of 2014).  
 
The changes do compel us to act. We updated policies, fees, and the informational 
forms we provide to the public. The changes should not impact business in any 
significant way, but we will need to update our processes and forms before July 1, 
2015.  
 
I have included the set of policies that staff has created. Please comment. If there are 
no objections, we will look to adopt these policies and forms at the meeting on June 
22nd. Ongoing changes will not be a hardship to create should the need arise. 
 

 5017 THIRD STREET (No Change of Status) 
I have been in contact with both adjacent land owners regarding the negotiated split 
and sale of 5017 Third Street.  I suspect arrangements can be made that will be 
acceptable to all parties.  I hope to have written instruments that would convey the 
properties, with negotiated pricing, by the second meeting in June.  
 

 OTHER COMMUNICATIONS & HAPPENINGS (Update)  
 

 MONTHLY REPORTS & UPDATES (Update) 
We have the routine suite of regular reports for this meeting. There are no 
irregularities or remarkable items. 
 

 COMCAST SERVICE UPDATE (Update) 
They are adding a service, but if you want certain ESPN services, you better sign up 
now. 
 

 BOARDS & COMMISSIONS (See Individual Category)  
 PLANNING COMMISSION (Update) 

The planning commission met on June 2nd to continue work on the master plan.  
They reviewed and revised the first four chapters. Big changes are not expected so 
the commission will likely have minor amendments completed in a draft for public 
review and comment by fall.  
 
The commission also made recommendations concerning the offer to purchase two 
Dye Road properties that the city owns as well as the potential purchase of some 
tax reverted properties under control of the county treasurer. These issues are 
covered below. Lastly, a few new points of business were brought up, including 
discussion of the fence ordinance and the performance of Family Farm and Home, 
specifically the outdoor storage. The commission will take a look at the fence 
ordinance to ascertain potential amendments to make screening of corner lots a bit 
easier. The Family Farm and Home issue is also covered below. 
 

 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (Update) 
The DDA met on May 14th to go over their budget and a potential boundary 
amendment.  Resolutions were approved for both issues, with more notes on the 
boundary amendment below. There next meeting will be June 11th and will likely 

City Council Packet 6 June 8, 2015



include preliminary amendments to the Development and Tax Increment Financing 
Plans, as well as another look at their budget. 
 

 ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (No Change of Status) 
Nothing to report 
 

 PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION  (Update) 
The park board met on June 3rd. They had a number of guests, including an eagle 
scout candidate. There are two proposed donations for Elms Park. One is for a 
bench from the Beta Sigma Phi sorority, and one is for an orienteering course. I 
expect to have the donations presented for city council approval within a month. 
There was also a noted concern about weekend amplifier use at Elms Park that 
may be a subject of future meetings.  
 
Their next meeting will be September 2nd. 
 

 BOARD OF REVIEW  (No Change of Status) 
Nothing to report. 
 

NEW BUSINESS / PROJECTED ISSUES & PROJECTS 
 

 FIREWORKS ORDINANCE DRAFT (Discussion) 
Last year, the city received a number of complaints about fireworks in town. This is 
because a recent state law now supersedes the city’s statutory prohibition of fireworks 
within the city.  However, the city is still in a position to limit certain types of fireworks 
by time, place, and manner during most days of the year. A new ordinance is required 
to do so. The city attorney has drafted an ordinance that does this. Please take a look 
and prepare for discussion at the meeting.  
 
Based upon our circumstances, as a relatively dense residential area, I think a more 
restrictive set of rules is in order to limit noise and the risk of injury. The public 
comment given in the past appears to support this. I am working with Mike to ascertain 
what restrictions are permissible under state law as applicable to “low impact 
fireworks” and “consumer fireworks”.  It is clear that we can still restrict display 
fireworks as defined. 
 

 TRAFFIC SIGNAL REMOVAL (Resolution) 
Genesee County Road Commission maintains the traffic signals in the city, at the city’s 
expense. For some time now, the fate of two such signals has been in need of 
determination. The signals are located in front of GM, one at the confluence of Bristol 
and Miller and another one at the entrance to the Genesee Valley Plaza (see map).  
These signals have been taken out of regular operation due to the noted decrease in 
employment at the GM facility. The lights have been in the caution or ‘flashing’ mode 
for many years. 
 
The GCRC has notified the city that the signals are due to be upgraded, replaced, or 
removed. The city knew this day would come and took the time to study the matter in 
late 2012. Rowe performed an analysis of the intersections and found that the signals 
are no longer required, that they meet none of the warrants that merit a signalized 

City Council Packet 7 June 8, 2015



interchange. Given the subsequent removal of the GM office space and absence of 
other noted growth indicators, this study appears to maintain its validity.  
 
Road work will be ongoing on Miller Road this summer, and the lane configuration is 
not proposed to change as was previously discussed. As such, this is probably a good 
time to get in there and remove these signals. Getting rid of them will save the city 
some money. The downside is that signals MAY be required at some future point 
depending on changing traffic demands. However, since new signals would be required 
in any case, it stands to reason that we buy new signals when they are needed and not 
before.  
 
A resolution is included to retire and remove the two signals.  If you wish to see report 
appendices, please let me know and we can provide them.  
 

 FAMILY FARM AND HOME SPECIAL LAND USE (Resolution) 
The Family Farm & Home business on Elms Road is generating numerous complaints 
and has been for a long time.  The violations have been sufficient in scope and scale to 
merit enforcement relating to site lighting, landscaping, and outdoor sales/storage. This 
last issue has been especially troublesome, resulting in limited parking, poor circulation, 
additional debris, and the appearance of blight.  
 
The city has attempted to work with the business and owner for nearly a year. 
Violations were identified in June of 2014, with written notice sent to the owner. A 
notice of violation was sent in February of 2015, and this resulted in a meeting with the 
site manager on March 3, 2015. At this point, a written timeline for corrections was 
created, and we believed that an adequate amount of cooperation was achieved. 
However, the situation has deteriorated rapidly over the last 90 days, with more 
unapproved outdoor sales, storage, and debris. The business has also begun 
unlawfully performing veterinary services.  
 
The city administration is moving forward with citations for numerous issues. However, 
the planning commission recommended, at the June 2, 2015 meeting, that the city 
enforce the ordinance as it relates to outdoor storage. To this end, I recommend that 
the city council start proceedings to revoke the special land use permit for outdoor 
sales and storage under section 30.06 of the zoning ordinance as outlined below:  
 
Section 30.06. - Revocation. 
 
The revocation of a special land use may occur if its recipient fails to continuously abide 
by its terms and conditions. The revocation procedure is as follows: 

 
A. The city council, through its designated administrators, shall notify the recipient, 
in writing, of any violations of city codes or provisions of the special land use. 
 
B. The recipient shall have 30 days to correct all deficiencies to the satisfaction of 
the city council. 
 
C. If after 30 days any deficiencies remain, the city council may then revoke the 
special land use approval, or if the conditions warrant, allow additional time. 

City Council Packet 8 June 8, 2015



 
D. A repeat violation may cause immediate revocation of the special land use 
approval. 

 
A resolution is prepared that will direct the attorney to inform the business and property 
owners of the violations and rights. Hopefully, a plan for compliance results. If it does 
not, the business stands to lose all outdoor sales and storage rights.  
 

 DYE ROAD PROPERTY SALE (Resolution) 
The planning commission considered the sale of both city-owned lots on Dye Road at 
their meeting on June 2nd. They found that there was no immediate public purpose to 
owning these lots, and they felt that the cost to maintain them, though small, was not 
advantageous.  Given zoning and adjacent land uses, it was found that the private 
sector is in a better position to create uses that are in the public interest than the city. 
The unofficial resolution is as follows: 
 
Resolution No. 150602-04       (Carried) 
 

Motion by Commissioner Conner support by Commissioner Culinski 
 
The Swartz Creek Planning Commission recommends the city council offer both 
properties on Dye Road for purchase, by sealed bid, to the two adjacent land owners 
(Dr. Burgess & Rashmawi), with the intention to auction the properties to the highest 
bidder in the event that no offer is accepted. 
 

YES: Florence, Florine, Krueger, Ridley, Stephens, Krueger, Culinski, Conner.  
NO: Pinkston.  Motion declared carried. 
 

 LIABILITY INSURANCE PAYMENT (Resolution) 
Our insurance premium is due for general property and liability insurance. This 
coverage applies to incidents such as the vehicle and property damage, as well as 
liability related to injuries and professional conduct.  We have been with this carrier for 
a long time, and I see no reason to change.  The 2013-2014 policy’s yearly cost was 
$62,399, and the cost for the FY 2014-2015 was $63,832.  This year’s premium is 
$64,965, an increase of $1,133 (1.8%). 
 

 BUDGET HEARING FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING 2016 (Resolution) 
The budget and resolution is included in its entirety. It remains unchanged from the 
public comment session. 

 
 TAX REVERTED PROPERTIES  

There are a number of properties facing tax foreclosure. A list is attached that was sent 
to the city by the county treasurer. Notice is short, but the city has the opportunity to 
take title of these properties by making a payment in the amount shown (plus current 
year taxes, which would add 25-30% to the cost depending on accruing assessments).  
 
Procedurally, the city would need to inform the county of the intent to purchase one or 
more properties by July 10, 2015. Once this is done, we wait out the redemption period 

City Council Packet 9 June 8, 2015



and await final availability. If the properties are not redeemed, the city has the option to 
purchase them for the amounts indicated, provided there is a public purpose.  
 
The planning commission reviewed this list and the attached maps at their last meeting. 
They recommended procurement of the vacant lots in Winchester Woods (for the 
purpose of planning, controlling, and providing for necessary public improvements 
identified in the vicinity, specifically drainage), procurement of the vacant lots in 
Heritage Village (for the purpose of controlling properties subject to a special 
assessment), and procurement of the abandoned gas station on Holland Drive (for the 
purpose of eliminating the blight and providing for public parking or another economic 
development project).  
 
No action is required at this point. Hopefully, council members can take the next two 
weeks to take a look at these properties and weight the costs and benefits to the public 
of taking ownership. Based upon the planning commission recommendations, there will 
be affirmative resolutions presented at the June 22, 2015 council meeting.  
 

Council Questions, Inquiries, Requests and Comments    
   

 Hometown Days: The event went well with no remarkable occurrences, 
except for a late night scuffle among carnival employees. We received a 
couple complaints from the Morrish Road corridor about the unlawful use of 
private property by patrons of the festival, as well as the ongoing noise and 
general impact on those homes in the immediate vicinity. 
 

 

City Council Packet 10 June 8, 2015



 
City of Swartz Creek 

RESOLUTIONS  
Regular Council Meeting, Monday, June 8, 2015, 7:00 P.M. 

 
Resolution No. 150608-4A  MINUTES – MAY 26, 2015 

 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Minutes of the Regular Council 
Meeting held Tuesday, May 26, 2015, to be circulated and placed on file. 
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 
 
Voting For:_______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________  

 
Resolution No. 150608-5A AGENDA APPROVAL 

 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Agenda as presented / printed / 
amended for the Regular Council Meeting of June 8, 2015, to be circulated and placed 
on file. 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 150608-6A CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council accept the City Manager’s Report of June 8, 
2015, to be circulated and placed on file. 

  
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 150608-8C TRAFFIC SIGNAL REMOVAL 
  

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek owns traffic signals within the city that are 
operated and maintained by the Genesee County Road Commission, and  
 

City Council Packet 11 June 8, 2015



WHEREAS, the GCRC finds that it is no longer practical or advisable to operate the 
traffic signals on Miller Road that service Bristol Road and General Motors, due to their 
age and obsolescence, and  
 
WHEREAS, the city is being requested by the GCRC to replace or remove such 
signals, and 
 
WHEREAS, activity at the General Motors facility, including trip counts and 
employment are greatly reduced, and 
 
WHEREAS, the signals have not been regulating traffic for many years, and 
 
WHEREAS, the city engineer conducted a traffic analysis for these two signals and 
found that the signals are no longer warranted, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOVLED,  the City Council determines that it is 
unnecessary to maintain traffic signals at these locations and directs staff to arrange 
for the removal of such signals as soon as practical.  

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 150608-8D FAMILY FARM & HOME SPECIAL LAND USE 
 

 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek approved a special land use for outdoor sales in 
storage for 4315 Elms Road (Family Farm & Home), in accordance with the site plan 
dated November 17, 2010, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the site has been noted to be in noncompliance with the site plan as it 
relates to this special land use, by virtue of numerous complaints, and; 
 
WHEREAS, city staff have attempted to engage the owner and business on 
numerous occasions over the period of a year to remedy the situation, including 
informal letters, a notice of violation, and informal meetings with site management, 
and;  
 
WHEREAS, the operation of the site has been further compromised by use of 
restricted parking areas for sales and storage of merchandise, industrial wares, and 
debris, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the planning commission recommends that more effective enforcement 
measures be taken, specifically relating to the function of the special land use, and 
 
WHEREAS, ordinance 30.06 provides provisions for the correction and revocation of 
special land uses, 
 

City Council Packet 12 June 8, 2015



NOW, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek City Council directs the city 
attorney to work with the building official to draft a notice of violation to send to the 
land owner and business owner as provided for in ordinance 30.06. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED city council directs staff to report the status of this 
matter after the expiration of the 30 day correction period.  

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 150608-8E DYE ROAD LOT SALES 
 

 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek owns two vacant, unimproved parcels of real 
property on Dye Road, identified as parcel 58-29-551-026, and 58-29-551-028, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the city received an unsolicited offer to purchase this property from an 
adjacent landowner, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the city council directed the planning commission to make a 
recommendation concerning this matter, and;  
 
WHEREAS, the commission reviewed the proposal at their meeting on June 2, 2015 
and found the properties to be of marginal public value, and; 
 
WHEREAS, commission recommends that the city council solicit sealed offers (bids) 
from the two adjacent land owners (Dr Burgess and Mr. Rashmawi) for both parcels, 
and 
 
WHEREAS, under the city’s land sale policy, the city council finds the recommended 
sale process and to be in the best interest of the public for the purposes of expediting 
the sale of surplus property and the consolidation of such parcels for more effective 
development, 
 
NOW, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek directs the city manager to 
solicit sealed bids for both parcels from the owners of 3380 Dye Road and 3398 Dye 
Road. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that such bids be brought back to the city council for 
consideration.  

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 150608-8F LIABILITY INSURANCE PAYMENT 
  

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

City Council Packet 13 June 8, 2015



I Move the City of Swartz Creek appropriate an amount not to exceed $64,965 to 
Michigan Municipal League Meadow Brook Insurance, payment of the City’s annual 
2015-2016 premiums for property and liability insurance, funds to be apportioned to 
reflect departmental coverage as noted in the invoice. 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 150608-8G FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET ADOPTION 
 

 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council, in accordance with the General Appropriations 
Act and Uniform Budgeting and Accounting Act, adopt the following 2015-2016 fiscal 
budget based upon the following tax mils: 
 

General Operating Levy   4.8289 
Public Safety SAD    4.9000 
Sanitation Levy    2.6270 

 

 
 

City Council Packet 14 June 8, 2015



 
 

City Council Packet 15 June 8, 2015



 
 
 

City Council Packet 16 June 8, 2015



 
 

City Council Packet 17 June 8, 2015



 
 

City Council Packet 18 June 8, 2015



 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Packet 19 June 8, 2015



 CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK 
SWARTZ CREEK, MICHIGAN 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
DATE 5/26/2015 

 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor Krueger in the Swartz Creek City 
Council Chambers, 8083 Civic Drive. 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Councilmembers Present:  Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, 

Shumaker. 
 
Councilmembers Absent:   None. 
 
Staff Present: City Manager Adam Zettel, City Clerk Juanita Aguilar, 

DPS Director Tom Svrcek. 
     
Others Present: Ron Schultz, Bob Plumb, Sharon Shumaker, Boots 

Abrams, Len Thomas, Dave Caudle. 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 Resolution No. 150526-01       (Carried) 
 

Motion by Councilmember Porath 
  Second by Councilmember Hicks 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council hereby approve the Minutes of the Regular 
Council Meeting held Monday, May 11, 2015 to be circulated and placed on file. 

 
YES: Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams. 

 NO:   None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution No. 150526-02       (Carried) 

 
Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams 

  Second by Councilmember Gilbert 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Agenda as amended, for the 
Regular Council Meeting of May 26, 2015, to be circulated and placed on file. 

 
YES: Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert. 

  NO:   None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
 
 
 

City Council Packet 20 June 8, 2015



City Manager’s Report 
 
  Resolution No. 150526-03       (Carried) 
 

 Motion by Councilmember Shumaker 
Second by Councilmember Gilbert 

 
 I Move the Swartz Creek City Council accept the City Manager’s Report of May 26, 
2015, to be circulated and placed on file. 

  
YES: Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC 
 
None. 
 
COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
Civil War Service Recognition of Fisher Brothers 
 
Mayor Krueger presented Len Thomas, Historical Society President, with a proclamation 
recognizing the Civil War Service of the Fisher Brothers.   
 
2016 Fiscal Year Budget 
 
Public Hearing Open: 
 
Dave Caudle, 4015 Elms Road, stated that it was difficult to do research on the budget and 
analyze it.  Mr. Caudle spoke about the department for Elms Park stating that two years 
ago $27,000 was spent on Elms Park, that amount doubled last year and the proposed 
budget has it doubling again.  Mr. Caudle wanted to know why the amounts are going so 
high.   
 
City Manager Zettel stated that there is a project pending to redo the bathrooms with grant 
funds, and the match money is in the current budget.  Mr. Zettel stated that it will probably 
go unspent because the grant award hasn’t been made yet so it is being projected to  carry 
over into the next fiscal budget.   The grant was sent in for $96,000, with the city 
contribution being half.  Mr. Zettel stated that this is something the Parks and Recreation 
department has been working on for years, with a lot of it being deferred maintenance.   
 
Mr. Caudle asked about the consolidation with Mundy Township stating that he hasn’t 
seen any savings.  Mr. Caudle spoke about the Public Safety Assessment of 4.9 mils 
projected to generate about $630,000 next year per the new budget.  Mr. Caudle spoke 
about the different departments; police, school safety, public safety, fire department and 
building safety, stating that for 2013-2014 there was $125,000 change.  Mr. Caudle stated 
that if taxes went up $630,000 and with those departments using the biggest share, where 
is the other $500,000?   
 

City Council Packet 21 June 8, 2015



Mr. Zettel stated that in 2013 the city budgeted a $300,000 deficit and if the city was to 
maintain 24 hour services, the gap had to be filled to maintain that service.  The idea was 
that once the Public Safety Assessment was passed, it would fill in that funding gap so 
they could function at a balanced budget without a $300,000 operating deficit.  The city 
also hired two new full time officers to get back to the previous staffing.  Mr. Zettel stated 
that a new fire truck was also purchased.  Mr. Zettel stated that what the city is now paying 
for Police Chief services is $37,500 a year.  If the merger doesn’t occur and that contract is 
ceased, the city will have to hire a new police chief which would easily cost $100,000, 
which would spike another $70,000 into the budget.  Mr. Zettel stated that there are a 
number of different impacts on the budget, but the big one was the city moving forward 
with 24/7 coverage.  
 
City Clerk/Finance Director Juanita Aguilar stated that the Public Safety building holds the 
fire department and police department, with all of their expenses included.  Ms. Aguilar 
stated that the total combination of expenses to support the public safety is $1,227,000, so 
even though there is a Public Safety millage of $630,000, it only covers 50% of their actual 
expenses.  Ms. Aguilar stated that the Public Safety department is about 55% of the total 
General Fund budget.   
 
Mr. Caudle stated that his question was why is there such a difference in budgets between 
2013-2014 and the new one.  Mr. Caudle stated that $630,000 came in but it doesn’t look 
like $630,000 went out.  Mr. Caudle stated that the new officers were in 847 but not in 718 
and there is only $125,000 difference.  Mr. Caudle stated that he suspects part of the 
money went elsewhere, like to general operating costs.   
 
Mayor Krueger stated that before the Public Safety millage was put into place, the city was 
scavenging from every other department in the city to keep the police force going.  Mr. 
Krueger stated that there weren’t even enough workers in the public works department to 
even plow the roads on a snow day.  Mr. Krueger stated that with the extra money coming 
in for public safety, the city has been able to replenish the people that were cut from other 
departments.   
 
DDA Boundary Agreement                     
 
 Resolution No. 150526-04                                       (Carried) 
   

Motion by Councilmember Hicks 
Second by Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek, County of Genesee, Michigan (the “City”) is 
authorized by the provisions of Act 197, Public Acts of Michigan, 1975, as amended 
(“Act 197”), to operate a downtown development authority, and  
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary, for the best interests of the public, to halt property value 
deterioration and increase property tax valuation where possible in the business 
district of the City, to eliminate the causes of such deterioration, and to promote 
economic growth, and  
 

City Council Packet 22 June 8, 2015



WHEREAS, the current boundaries are considered inadequate to finance and 
effectively operate and impact the community, and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to conduct a public hearing in connection with the 
consideration of proposed ordinance changes concerning DDA boundaries as 
required by Act 197. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED,  the City Council determines that it is 
necessary for the best interest of the pubic to amend the City’s Downtown 
Development Authority pursuant to Act 197 in order to halt property value 
deterioration and increase property tax valuation where possible in the business 
district of the City, to eliminate the causes of such deterioration, and to promote 
economic growth, and the City Council hereby declares its intention to provide for 
the operation of a downtown development authority pursuant to Act 197.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, there shall be a public hearing on September 14, 
2015 at 7:00 PM regarding amendments to the DDA boundaries in the City Council 
Chambers at City Hall.   

 
Discussion Ensued. 

 
  YES: Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger. 

NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
Appropriation—Bid Award, Purchase Road Salt 
 
 Resolution No. 150526-05             (Carried) 
   

Motion by Councilmember Gilbert 
Second by Councilmember Hicks 

 
WHEREAS, the city finds it necessary to control ice and snow accumulation on 
public streets and parking areas with the application of road salt during winter 
months; and 
 
WHEREAS, this process requires approximately 1,000 tons of rock salt during a 
winter season; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City’s Purchasing Ordinance, Chapter 2, Article VI, Section 2-406 
provides for and encourages cooperative government purchasing practices; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Genesee County Road Commission accepts and awards bids for 
the purchase of rock salt for application to public rights of way during those 
relentless and invasive Michigan winters; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Road Commission negotiated an extension, with increase, 
of a low bid price with Detroit Salt Company of 12841 Sanders, Detroit, at a unit 
cost of $59.83 per ton, and a cooperative purchasing invitation has been extended 
to the City from the Genesee County Road Commission on May 5, 2015; and 

City Council Packet 23 June 8, 2015



 
WHEREAS, the City finds that the per-ton cost of $59.83 cannot be matched if 
attempts were made to bid on the open market or through private sources. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I MOVE the City of Swartz Creek City accept the Genesee 
County Road Commission’s cooperative purchasing extension and appropriate an 
amount not to exceed $59,830, plus 10% contingency, for the purchase of rock salt 
from the Detroit Salt Company, expenses to be distributed proportionate to use at 
the direction of the City’s Finance Director. 

 
Discussion Took Place. 
 
  YES: Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston. 

NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
MML Workers Compensation 
 
 Resolution No. 150526-06       (Carried) 
 

Motion by Councilmember Pinskton 
Second by Councilmember Hicks 

 
I Move the City of Swartz Creek approve payment to the Michigan Municipal 
League in the amount of $19,446 to cover the annual premium for workers’ 
compensation coverage period from July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 and further direct 
the city’s finance director to appropriate the cost of this premium to the appropriate 
city funds in accordance with the Class Codes identified in the invoice. 

 
YES: Shumaker, Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried 

 
Scrap Tire Grant—Intersection Repair 
 
 Resolution No. 150526-07       (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Porath 
  Second by Councilmember Shumaker 

 
WHEREAS, the city submitted a scrap tire grant request to the State of Michigan 
Department of Environmental Quality to provide $250,000 towards funding street 
work in Parkridge Subdivision and on Yarmy Drive; and  
 
WHEREAS, the grant was approved in the amount of $62,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city rejected the bids for the above projects due to a lack of match 
funds; and  
 
WHEREAS, the DEQ will provide funding for alternate street projects, with a new 
emphasis on intersections; and 

City Council Packet 24 June 8, 2015



 
WHEREAS, the city has identified two intersections that are in need of repair and of 
appropriate scale for the level of funding provided; and 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, the city still retains the right to select another project or to withdraw 

from 
the 
grant 

program. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City of Swartz Creek approve the 
design engineering proposal by Rowe Professional Services in the amount of 
$7,600 for design engineering services related to these two intersections, including 
bidding, with funds to be appropriated out of Fund 202 (Major Street Fund). 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council directs the City Manager to 
prepare and execute the grant agreement with the Department of Environmental 
Quality as included in the city council packet of May 26, 2015.  

 
Discussion Took Place. 
 
  YES: Abrams, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker. 
  NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
Year End Fiscal Adjustments 
 
 Resolution No. 150526-08       (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams 
  Second by Councilmember Shumaker 
 
 
 

Scrap Tire Intersection Projects for 2016 

 
Fairchild-Miller Winston-Miller Total 

Construction $52,250 $68,300 $120,550 
Contingency $5,225 $6,830 $12,055 
Design Engineering     $7,600 

Total 
  

$140,205 

City Council Packet 25 June 8, 2015



WHEREAS, Act 621 of P.A. 1978 provides for a uniform budgeting system for local 
units of government; and 
 
WHEREAS, Act 275 of P.A. of 1980 further prohibits deficit spending by local units 
of government; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the City’s 2014 - 2015 Fiscal Year 
Budget and comparative year-to-date balance sheet of expenses and revenues, 
and finds that it is not in deficit; however, certain department activity line items may 
be in deficit. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Swartz Creek City Council hereby authorizes 
and directs the City Manager to make all necessary year-end budget adjustment 
amendments. 

 
Discussion Ensued. 
 
  YES: Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Shumaker, Abrams. 
  NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC: 
 
Dave Caudle, 4015 Elms Road, spoke about the recently defeated proposed road millage.  
Mr. Caudle spoke about taxes being doubled the previous year with the Public Safety 
Assessment and that is why he feels the millage failed.  Mr. Caudle stated that he feels as 
if a blend of fixes should be done; a small tax increase as well as an assessment for the 
roads that need repaired.   
 
REMARKS BY COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
Councilmember Shumaker commented on the census map in the council packet,  asking if 
it was the same one that is in the conference room and if that is the one the census was 
based on.  He was advised that it was. 
 
Councilmember Gilbert spoke about the Indian cemetery.  Mr. Gilbert stated that Henry 
Crapo never owned that land but that it was owned by one of his relatives.  Mr. Gilbert 
stated that when it was sold there were five acres that were reserved out, but never sold to 
Henry Crapo.  Mr. Gilbert stated that he has the document to prove it.   
 
Councilmember Pinkston asked if there was a time frame when the millings on Winchester 
Woods, specifically Young and Cardigan, would be done.  He was advised that no specific 
time frame is available at this time.  
 
Mayor Krueger thanked City Manager Zettel for finding and having corrected the error in 
the City’s borders with the Census Bureau.   
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Abrams went through the process for friendly amendments.   
 
Adjournment 

City Council Packet 26 June 8, 2015



 
Resolution No. 150526-09       (Carried) 

 
Motion by Councilmember Shumaker 
Second by Councilmember Gilbert 

 
I Move the City of Swartz Creek adjourn the Regular Session of the City Council 
meeting at 8:03 p.m. 

 
 YES: Unanimous Voice Vote. 

                      NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
___________________________   _____________________________ 
David A. Krueger, Mayor           Juanita Aguilar, City Clerk 

City Council Packet 27 June 8, 2015



FOIA Summary 1 Approved: XXX 2015 

City of Swartz Creek 
Summary of Freedom of Information Procedures and Guidelines 

Consistent with Public Act 563 of 2014 amending the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA), the following is the Written 
Public Summary of the city’s FOIA Procedures and Guidelines relevant to the general public. 

Submitting a FOIA request to the City of Swartz Creek 

 Requests to inspect or obtain copies of public records prepared, owned, used, possessed or retained by the City 
of Swartz Creek must be submitted in writing. 

 A request must sufficiently describe a public record so as to enable the city to locate it. 
 No specific form to submit a written request is required. However a FOIA Request form is available on the city’s 

website at www.cityofswartzcreek.org. 
 Written requests can b e made in person by delivery to the city office in person or by mail. 
 Requests can be made by facsimile by calling 810.635.2887. 
 Requests submitted by email should contain the term “FOIA” in the subject line and be sent 

to azettel@cityofswartzcreek.org. 

Note: If you are serving a sentence of imprisonment in a local, state, or federal correctional facility you are not entitled to 
submit a request for a public record.  

Standard responses for a FOIA request? 

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a FOIA request, the city will issue a response. If a request is received by 
facsimile or e-mail, the request is deemed to have been received on the following business day. The city will respond to 
your request in one of the following ways: 

 Grant the request. 
 Issue a written notice denying the request. 
 Grant the request in part and issue a written notice denying in part the request. 
 Issue a notice indicated that due to the nature of the request the city needs an additional ten (10) business days 

to respond. 
 Issue a written notice indicated that the public record requested is available at no charge on the city’s webpage. 

Deposit requirements? 

If the city has made a good faith calculation that the total fee for processing the request exceeds $50.00, the city will 
require a deposit in the amount of 50% of the total estimated fee. When the city requests the deposit, it will provide you a 
non-binding best efforts estimate of how long it will take to process the request following receipt by the city of your 
deposit.  

If the city receives a request from a person who has not paid the city for copies of public records made in fulfillment of a 
previously granted written request, the city will require a deposit of 100% of the estimated processing fee before it begins 
to search for the public records for any subsequent written request when all of the following conditions exist: 

 the final fee for the prior written request is not more than 105% of the estimated fee; 
 the public records made available contained the information sought in the prior written request and remain in the 

city’s possession;  
 the public records were made available to the individual, subject to payment, within the time frame estimated by 

the city to provide the records; 
 90 days have passed since the city notified the individual in writing that the public records were available for 

pickup or mailing; 
 the individual is unable to show proof of prior payment to the city; and 
 the city has calculated an estimated detailed itemization that is the basis for the current written request’s 

increased fee deposit. 

The city will not require the 100% estimated fee deposit if any of the following apply: 

 the person making the request is able to show proof of prior payment in full to the city; 
 the city is subsequently paid in full for all applicable prior written requests; or 

City Council Packet 28 June 8, 2015

http://www.cityofswartzcreek.org/
mailto:azettel@cityofswartzcreek.org


FOIA Summary 2 Approved: XXX 2015 

 365 days have passed since the person made the request for which full payment was not remitted to the city. 

Calculation of FOIA fees? 

A fee will not be charged for the cost of search, examination, review and the deletion and separation of exempt from 
nonexempt information unless failure to charge a fee would result in unreasonably high costs to the city because of the 
nature of the request in the particular instance, and the city spec8fically identifies the nature of the unreasonably high 
costs. 

The Michigan FOIA statue permits the city to assess and collect a fee for six designated processing components. The city 
may charge for the following costs associated with processing a request: 

 Labor costs associated with searching for, locating, and examining a requested public record. 
 Labor costs associated with a review of a record to separate and delete information exempt from disclosure of 

information which is disclosed. 
 The cost of computer discs or other digital media when the requester asks for records in non-paper physical 

media. 
 The cost of duplication of publication, not including labor, of paper copies of public records 
 Labor costs associated with the duplication or publication, which includes making paper copies, making digital 

copies, or transferring digital public records to non-paper physical media or through the internet. 
 The cost to mail or send a public record to a requestor. 

Labor Costs 

 Estimated and charged labor costs will be allotted 15 minute increments with all partial time increments rounded 
down. 

 Labor costs will be charged at the hourly wage of the lowest-paid city employee capable of doing the work in the 
specific fee category, regardless of who actually performs the work. 

 Labor costs will also include a charge to cover or partially cover the cost of fringe benefits. 

Non-paper Physical Media 

 The cost for records provided on non-paper physical media, such as computer discs, computer tapes, USB 
memory, or other digital media will be at the actual and most reasonably economical cost for the non-paper 
media. 

 This cost will only be assessed if the city has the technology capability necessary to provide the public record in 
the requested non-paper physical media format. 

Paper Copies 

 Paper copies of public records made on standard letter (8.5 x11) or legal (8.5 x 14) sized paper will not exceed 
$0.10 per sheet of paper. Copies for non-standard sized sheets will reflect the actual cost of reproduction. 

 The city may provide records using double-sided printing, if cost-saving and available. 

Mailing Costs 

 The cost to mail public records will use a reasonably economical and justified means. 
 The city may charge for the least expensive form of postal delivery confirmation. 
 No cost will be made for expedited shipping or insurance unless requested. 

FOIA processing fee reduction 

The city may waive or reduce the fee associated with a request when the city determines that to do so is in the public 
interest because release of the information is considered as primarily benefitting the general public. 

The city will waive the first $20.00 of the processing fee for a request if you submit an affidavit stating that you are: 

 indigent and receiving specific public assistance; or 
 if not receiving public assistance, stating facts demonstrating an inability to pay because of indigency. 

You are not eligible to receive the $20.00 waiver if you: 

 have previously received discounted copies of public records from the city twice during the calendar year; or 

City Council Packet 29 June 8, 2015



FOIA Summary 3 Approved: XXX 2015 

 are requesting information on behalf of other persons who are offering or providing payment to you to make the 
request. 

An affidavit is a sworn statement. For your convenience, the city has provided an Affidavit of Indigency form for the waiver 
of FOIA fees on its website. 

The city will waive the fee for a nonprofit organization which meets all of the following conditions: 

 the organization is designated by the state under federal law to carry out activities under the Developmental 
Disabilities Assistance and Bill of Rights Act of 2000 and the Protection and Advocacy for Individuals with Mental 
Illness Act; 

 the request is made directly on behalf of the organization or its clients; 
 the request is made for a reason wholly consistent with the provisions of federal law under Section 931 of the 

Mental Health Code; and 
 the request is accompanied by documentation of the organization’s designation by the state. 

Appeals for denial of a public record or an excessive fee? 

Appeal of a Denial of a Public Record 

If you believe that all or a portion of a public record has not been disclosed or has been improperly exempted from 
disclosure, you may file an appeal of the denial with the city council. The appeal must be in writing, specifically state the 
word “appeal” and identify the reason or reasons you are seeking a reversal of the denial. 

Within ten (10) business days of receiving the appeal (defined as the first regular meeting of the council after submission), 
the mayor will respond in writing by: 

 reversing the disclosure denial; 
 upholding the disclosure denial; or 
 reverse the disclosure denial in part and uphold the disclosure in part. 

Whether or not you submitted an appeal of a denial to the city council, you may file a civil action in circuit court within 180 
days after the city’s final determination to deny your request.  

Appeal of an Excessive FOIA Processing Fee 

If you believe that the fee charged by the city to process your FOIA request exceeds the amount permitted by state law, 
you must first submit a written appeal for a fee reduction to the city council. The appeal must be in writing, specifically 
state the word “appeal” and identify how the required fee exceeds the amount permitted. 

Within ten (10) business days after receiving the appeal, the mayor will respond in writing by: 

 waiving the fee; 
 reducing the fee and issue a written determination indicating the specific basis that supports the remaining fee; 
 upholding the fee and issue a written determination indicating the specific basis that supports the required fee; or 
 issuing a notice detailing the reason or reasons for extending for not more than ten (10) business days the period 

during which the mayor will respond to the written appeal. 

Within forty-five (45) days after receiving notice of the determination of the processing fee appeal, you may commence a 
civil action in circuit court for a fee reduction. 

Further Information 

This is a summary of the City of Swartz Creek’s FOIA Procedures and Guidelines. For more details, the City of Swartz 
Creek FOIA Procedures and Guidelines are available at no charge at the city office and on the city’s website 
at www.cityofswartzcreek.org. 

 

City Council Packet 30 June 8, 2015

http://www.cityofswartzcreek.org/


FOIA Procedures 1 Adopted: XXX 2015 

City of Swartz Creek 
Freedom of Information Act Procedures & Guidelines 

Principles and Intent 

It is the policy of the City of Swartz Creek that all persons, consistent with the Michigan Freedom of Information 
Act (FOIA), are entitled to full and complete information regarding the affairs of government and the official acts 
of those who represent them as public officials and employees. The people shall be informed so that they fully 
participate in the democratic process.  

The City of Swartz Creek’s policy with respect to FOIA requests is to comply with state law in all respects and to 
respond to FOIA requests in a consistent, fair, and transparent manner regardless of the source or content of such 
requests. 

The City of Swartz Creek acknowledges that it has a legal obligation to disclose all nonexempt public records in its 
possession pursuant to a FOIA request. The City of Swartz Creek acknowledges that sometimes it is necessary to 
observe exemptions identified under FOIA in order to ensure the effective operation of government and to 
protect the privacy of individuals.  

The City of Swartz Creek will protect the public’s interest in disclosure, while balancing the requirement to 
withhold or redact portions of certain records. The City of Swartz Creek’s policy is to disclose public records 
consistent with and in compliance with state law in a manner that is efficient in cost and time, thereby 
encouraging FOIA requests. 

General Policies 

The City Council acting pursuant to the authority within MCL 15.236 designates the City Manager as the FOIA 
Coordinator. The manager is authorized to designate other city staff, including counsel, to act on his or her behalf 
to accept and process written requests for the city’s public records and approve denials.  

If a request for a public record is received by facsimile or e-mail, the request is deemed to have been received on 
the following business day. If a request is sent by e-mail and delivered to a spam or junk-mail folder, the request is 
not deemed received until one day after the FOIA Coordinator first becomes aware of the request. The FOIA 
Coordinator shall maintain a record of the date the request was delivered to the spam or junk-mail folder and the 
date the FOIA Coordinator became aware of the request.  

The FOIA Coordinator and City Clerk shall review their respective and any general city email spam and/or junk-
mail folders on a regular basis, which shall be no less than once a month.  

The FOIA Coordinator may implement administrative rules and policies, consistent with state law and these 
procedures and guidelines, to administer the acceptance and processing of FOIA requests.  

The city is not obligated to create a new public record or make a compilation or summary of information which 
does not already exist. Neither the FOIA Coordinator nor other city staff are obligated to provide answers to 
questions contained in requests for public records or regarding objective or subjective content of the records 
themselves. 

The FOIA Coordinator shall keep a copy of all written requests for public records received by the city on file for a 
period of a least one year. 

Requesting a Public Record 

City Council Packet 31 June 8, 2015



FOIA Procedures 2 Adopted: XXX 2015 

A person requesting to inspect or obtain copies of public records prepared, owned, used, possessed or retained by 
the City of Swartz Creek must do so in writing. The request must sufficiently describe a public record so as to 
enable City personnel to identify and find the requested public record.  

No specific form to submit a request for a public record is required. However, the FOIA Coordinator may make 
available such a form for use by the public. 

Written request for public records may be submitted in person or by mail to the city office, located at 8083 Civic 
Drive. Requests may also be submitted electronically by facsimile and e-mail to the FOIA Coordinator. Upon their 
receipt, requests for public records shall be promptly forwarded to the FOIA Coordinator for processing.  

A person may request that public records be provided on non-paper physical media, electronically mailed or 
otherwise provided in lieu of paper copies. The city will comply with the request only if it possesses the necessary 
technological capability to provide records in the requested non-paper physical media format. Data storage 
devices and discs shall be provided by the city, at the expense of the requester, unless the requester provides 
such media in new and sealed form or a form that is otherwise ensured to be un-manipulated or contaminated 
with potentially harmful software. 

A person who makes a verbal, non-written request for information believed to be available on the city’s website, 
where practicable and to the best ability of the employee receiving the request, shall be informed of the pertinent 
website address.  

Note that these requirements shall not prohibit staff from providing public records upon verbal or informal 
request, in the normal course of business, as incidental requests of a non-verbal or electronic nature are 
requested outside of the FOIA statute from time to time. 

Processing a Request 

Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the person making the request, within five (5) business days of receipt of 
a FOIA request the city will issue a response. The city will respond to the request in one of the following ways: 

• Grant the request 
• Issue a written notice denying the request 
• Grant the request in part and issue a written notice denying  the request in part 
• Issue a notice indicating that, due to the nature of the request, the city needs an additional ten (10) days 

to respond. Only one such extension is permitted. 
• Issue a written notice indicated that the public record requested is available at no charge on the city’s 

website.  

If the request is granted, or granted in part, the FOIA Coordinator will require that payment be made in full for the 
allowable fees associated with the responding to the request before the public record is made available. The FOIA 
Coordinator shall provide a detailed itemization of the allowable costs incurred to process the request.  

A copy of these procedures and guidelines shall be provided to the requestor with the response to a written 
request for public records, provided however, that if these procedures and guidelines and the written public 
summary are maintained on the city’s website, then a website link to those documents may be provided in lieu of 
providing paper copies.  

If the cost of processing a FOIA request is $50 or less, the requester will be notified of the amount due and where 
the documents can be obtained. 

City Council Packet 32 June 8, 2015



FOIA Procedures 3 Adopted: XXX 2015 

If a good faith calculation by the city indicates that the cost of processing a FOIA request is expected to exceed 
$50, or if the requestor has not fully paid for a previously granted request, the city will require a good-faith 
deposit before processing the request. In making the request for a good-faith deposit the FOIA Coordinator shall 
provide the requestor with a detailed itemization of the allowable costs estimated to be incurred by the city to 
process the request. The city will also provide a best efforts estimate of a time frame it will take the city to 
provide the records. The best efforts estimate shall be nonbinding on the city, but will be made in good faith and 
will strive to be reasonably accurate, given the nature of the request in the particular instance, so as to provide 
the requested records in a manner based on the public policy expressed by the General Polices.  

• If a request is denied or denied in part, the FOIA Coordinator will issue a Notice of Denial which shall 
provide the following, as applicable: 

• An explanation as to why a requested public record is exempt from disclosure; or 
• A certificate that the requested records does not exist under the name or description provided by the 

requestor, or another name reasonably known by the city; or 
• An explanation or description of the public record or information with a public record that is separated or 

deleted from the public record; and 
• An explanation of the person’s right to submit an appeal of the denial to either the city council or seek 

judicial review in circuit court; and 
• An explanation of the right to receive attorneys’ fees, costs, and disbursements as well as actual or 

compensatory damages, and punitive damages of $1,000, should they prevail in circuit court. 
• The notice shall be signed by the FOIA Coordinator. 

If a request does not sufficiently describe a public record, the FOIA Coordinator may, in lieu of issuing a Notice of 
Denial indicating that the request is deficient, seek clarification or amendment of the request by the person 
making the request. Any clarification or amendment will be considered a new request subject to the timelines 
described in this section.  

The city shall provide reasonable facilities and opportunities for persons to examine and inspect public records 
during normal business hours. The FOIA Coordinator is authorized to promulgate rules regulating the manner in 
which records may be viewed so as to protect city records from loss, alternation, mutilation, or destruction and to 
prevent excessive interference with normal city operations.  

The FOIA Coordinator shall, upon written request, furnish a certified copy of a public records at no additional cost 
to the person requesting the public record. 

Fee Deposits 

If the fee estimate is expected to exceed $50.00 based on a good-faith calculation by the city, the requestor will 
be asked to provide a deposit not exceeding one-half of the total estimated fee. 

If a request for a public record is from a person who has not fully paid the city for copies of public records made in 
fulfillment of a previously granted written request, the FOIA Coordinator will require a deposit of 100% of the 
estimated processing fee before beginning to search for a public record for any subsequent written request by 
that person when all of the following conditions exist:  

• The final fee for the prior written request is not more than 105% of the estimated fee; 
• The public records made available contained the information sought in the prior written request and 

remain in the city’s possessions; 
• The public records were made available to the individual, subject to payment, within the time frame 

estimated by the city to provide the records; 

City Council Packet 33 June 8, 2015



FOIA Procedures 4 Adopted: XXX 2015 

• 90 days have passed since the FOIA Coordinator notified the individual in writing that the public records 
were available for pickup or mailing; 

• The individual is unable to show proof of prior payment to the city; and 
• The FOIA Coordinator has calculated a detailed itemization that is the basis for the current written 

request’s increased estimated fee deposit.  

The FOIA Coordinator will not require an increased estimated fee deposit if any of the following apply: 

• The person making the request is able to show proof of prior payment in full to the city; 
• The city is subsequently paid in full for the applicable prior written request; 
• 365 days have passed since the person made the request for which full payment was not remitted to the 

city. 

Calculation of Fees 

A fee will not be charged for the cost of search, examination, review, and the deletion and separation of exempt 
from nonexempt information unless failure to charge a fee would result in unreasonably high costs to the city 
because of the nature of the request in the particular instance, and the city specifically identifies the nature of the 
unreasonably high costs.  

The following factors shall be used to determine an unreasonably high cost to the city: 

• The particular request incurs costs greater than incurred from the typical or usual request received by the 
city. See Bloch v Davison Community Schools, 2011 Mich App Lexis 771, 2011 WL 1564645 

• Volume of the public record requested 
• Amount of time spent to search for, examine, review and separate exempt from non-exempt information 

in the record requested. 
• Whether public records from more than one city department or various city offices is necessary to 

respond to the request. 
• The available staffing to respond to the request. 
• Any other similar factors identified by the FOIA Coordinator in responding to the particular request. 

The city may charge for the following costs associated with processing a FOIA request: 

• Labor costs directly associated with searching for, locating, and examining a requested public record. 
• Labor costs associated with a review of a record to separate and delete information exempt from 

disclosure of information which is disclosed. 
• The actual cost of media discs, tapes, physical memory, or similar digital media. 
• The cost of duplication of publication, not including labor, of paper copies of public records. 
• The cost of labor associated with duplication or publication, including making paper copies, making digital 

copies or transferring digital public records to non-paper physical media or through the Internet or other 
electronic means.  

• The actual cost of mailing or sending a public record. 

Labor costs will be calculated based on the following requirements: 

• Estimated and charged labor costs will be allotted 15 minute increments with all partial time increments 
rounded down. 

• Labor costs will be charged at the hourly wage of the lowest-paid city employee capable of doing the work 
in the specific fee category, regardless of who actually performs the work. (If using contract or outside labor 
to separate and delete exempt material from non-exempt material, the public body must clearly note the 

City Council Packet 34 June 8, 2015



FOIA Procedures 5 Adopted: XXX 2015 

name of the person or firm who does the work and the total cost may not exceed an amount six (6) times 
the state minimum hourly wage). 

• Labor costs will also include a charge to cover or partially cover the cost of fringe benefits. The city may 
add up to 50% to the applicable labor charge amount to cover or partially cover the cost of fringe benefits, 
but in no case may it exceed the actual cost of fringe benefits. 

• Overtime wages will not be included in labor costs until agreed to by the requestor; overtime costs will not 
be used to calculate the fringe benefit cost. 

The cost to provide records on non-paper physical media when so requested will be based on the following 
requirements: 

• Media/computer discs, taps, physical memory, or similar media will be at the actual and most reasonably 
economical cost for the non-paper media. 

• This cost will only be assessed if the city has the technological capability necessary to provide the public 
record in the requested non-paper physical media format.  

• In order to ensure the integrity and security of the city’s technological infrastructure, the city will procure any 
requested non-paper media. The city may accept new, sealed media provided by the requestor.  

The cost to provide paper copies of records will be based on the following requirements: 

• Paper copies of public records made on standard letter (8.5 x 11) or legal (8.5 x 14) sized paper will not 
exceed $0.10 per sheet of paper. Copies for non-standard sized sheets of paper will reflect the actual cost 
of reproduction. 

• The city may provide records using double-sided printing, if cost-saving and available. 

The cost to mail records to a requestor will be based on the following requirements: 

• The actual cost to mail public records using a reasonably economical and justified means. 
• The city may charge for the least expensive form of postal delivery confirmation. 
• No cost or provision will be made for expedited shipping or insurance unless requested. 

If the FOIA Coordinator does not respond to a written request in a timely manner, the following shall be required: 

• Reduce the labor costs by 5% for each day the city exceeds the time permitted under FOIA up to a 50% 
maximum reduction, if any of the following applies: 

o The late response was willful and intentional. 
o The written request, within the first 250 words of the body of a letter facsimile, e-mail or e-mail 

attachment conveyed a request for information. 
o The written request included the words, characters, or abbreviations for “freedom of information:, 

“information”, “FOIA”, “copy” or a recognizable misspelling of such, or legal code reference to MCL 
15.231 et seq or 1976 Public Act 442 on the front of an envelope or in the subject line of an e-mail, 
letter or facsimile cover page. 

• Fully note the charge reduction in the Detailed Itemization of Costs Form. 

Waiver of Fees 

The cost of search for and copying of a public record may be waived or reduced if in the sole judgment of the FOIA 
Coordinator a waiver or reduced fee is in the public interest because such can be considered as primarily 
benefitting the general public. Such a record could consist of a record created for the primary purpose of informing 
the public on a matter of health, safety, or welfare (e.g. a media outlet request for a siren testing schedule or water 
quality report). 

The FOIA Coordinator will waive the first $20.00 of the processing fee for a request if the person requesting a 
public record submits an affidavit stating that they are: 

• Indigent and receiving specific public assistance; or 
• If not receiving public assistance, stating facts demonstrating an inability to pay because of indigency. 

City Council Packet 35 June 8, 2015



FOIA Procedures 6 Adopted: XXX 2015 

An individual is not eligible to receive the waiver if: 

• The requestor has previously received discounted copies of public records from the city twice during the 
calendar year; or 

• The requestor requests information in connection with other persons who are offering or providing 
payment to make the request. 

The FOIA Coordinator may make a Fee Waiver Affidavit Form available for use by the public. 

A nonprofit organization designated by the state to carry out activities under subtitle C of the Developmental 
Disabilities Assistance and Bill of Rights Act of 2000 and the Protection and Advocacy for Individuals with Mental 
Illness Act, or their successors, if the request meets all of the following requirements: 

• Is made directly on behalf of the organization or its clients; 
• Is made for a reason wholly consistent with the mission and provisions of those laws under Section 931 of 

the Mental Health Code, MCL 330.1931; 
• Is accompanied by documentation of its designation by the state. 

Appeal of a Denial of a Public Record 

When a requestor believes that all or a portion of a public record has not been disclosed or has been improperly 
exempted from disclosure, he or she may file an appeal of the denial with the city council. The appeal must be in 
writing, specifically state the word “appeal” and identify the reason or reasons the requestor is seeking a reversal 
of the denial. An appeal shall not be considered to have been received until the first regularly scheduled meeting 
of the city council following the written submission of a denial or fee amount appeal. 

Within ten (10) business days of receiving the appeal, the city manager, acting on behalf of and in accordance 
with a resolution of the council, will respond in writing by: 

• Reversing the disclosure denial; 
• Upholding the disclosure denial; or 
• Reverse the disclosure denial in part and uphold the disclosure denial in part. 
• Under unusual circumstances, such as the need to examine or review a voluminous amount of separate 

and distinct public records or the need to collect the requested records from numerous facilities located 
apart from the office receiving or processing the request, the city manager may issue not more than one 
(1) notice of extension for not more than ten (10) business days to respond to the appeal. 

Whether or not a requestor submitted an appeal of denial to the city council, he or she may file a civil action in 
circuit court within 180 days after the city’s final determination to deny the request.  

If the court determines that the public record is not exempt from disclosure, the court will award the appellant 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, cost and disbursements. If the court determines that the appellant prevails only in 
part, the court in its discretion may award all or an appropriate portion of reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs, and 
disbursements. 

If the court determines that the city arbitrarily and capriciously violated the FOIA by refusing or delaying the 
disclosure of copies of a public record, it shall award the appellant punitive damages in the amount of $1,000. The 
court may also order that the public body pay a civil fine of $1,000 to the state treasury. 

Appeal of an Excessive FOIA Processing Fee 

If a requestor believes that the fee charged by the city to process a FOIA request exceeds the amount permitted 
by state law, he or she must first submit a written appeal for a fee reduction to the city council. The appeal must 

City Council Packet 36 June 8, 2015



FOIA Procedures 7 Adopted: XXX 2015 

be in writing, specifically state the word “appeal” and identify how the required fee exceeds the amount 
permitted.  

Within ten (10) business days of receiving the appeal, the city manager, acting on behalf of and in accordance 
with a resolution of the council, will respond in writing by: 

• Waive the fee; 
• Reduce the fee and issue a written determination indicating the specific basis that supports the remaining 

fee, accompanied by a certification by the mayor that the statements in the determination are accurate 
and the reduced fee amount complies with these procedures and guidelines and the Section 4 of the 
FOIA; 

• Uphold the fee and issue a written determination indicating the specific basis under Section 4 of the FOIA 
that supports the required fee, accompanied by a certification by the manager that the statements in the 
determination are accurate and the fee amount complies with these procedures and guidelines and 
Section 4 of the FOIA; or 

• Issue a notice detailing the reason or reasons for extending for not more than ten (10) business days the 
period during which the manager will respond to the written appeal. 

Within forty-five (45) days after receiving notice of the city manager’s determination of a fee appeal, a requestor 
may commence a civil action in circuit court for a fee reduction. If a civil action is filed appealing the fee, the city is 
not obligated to process the request for the public record until the court resolves the fee dispute. 

If the court determines that the city required a fee that exceeds the amount permitted, it shall reduce the fee to a 
permissible amount. If the appellant in the civil action prevails by receiving a reduction of 50% or more of the 
total fee, the court may award all or appropriate amount of reasonable attorneys’ fees, cots, and disbursements. 

If the court determines that the city has acted arbitrarily and capriciously by charging an excessive fee, the court 
shall also award the appellant punitive damages in the amount of $500. 

Conflict with Prior FOIA Policies and Procedures; Effective Date 

To the extent that these procedures and guidelines conflict with previous FOIA policies promulgated by the city 
council or administration, these procedures and guidelines are controlling. To the extent that any administrative 
rule promulgated by the FOIA Coordinator subsequent to the adoption of this resolution is found to be in conflict 
with any previous policy promulgated by the city council or the city administration, the administrative rule 
promulgated by the FOIA Coordinator is controlling.  

To the extent that any provision of these procedures and guidelines or any administrative rule promulgated by the 
FOIA Coordinator pertaining to the release of public records is found to be in conflict with any state statute, the 
applicable statute shall control. The FOIA Coordinator is authorized to modify this policy and all previous policies 
adopted by the city council or city administration, and to adopt such administrative rules as he or she may deem 
necessary, to facilitate the legal review and processing of requests for public records made pursuant to Michigan’s 
FOIA statute, provided that such modifications are rules are consistent with state law. The FOIA Coordinator shall 
inform the city council of any change to these policies and guidelines.  

These FOIA Policies and Guidelines become effective July 1, 2015. 

Appendix of City of Swartz Creek FOIA Forms 

• Request Form 
• Detailed Itemization of Fees Form 
• Denial Form 

City Council Packet 37 June 8, 2015



FOIA Procedures 8 Adopted: XXX 2015 

• Appeal Form 
• Certification Form 
• Waiver of Fee Form 

City Council Packet 38 June 8, 2015



Component Cost Calculation Total
Hourly Rate of the lowest paid employee capable of 
perfomring the search, location, and examination $8.15
Fringe multiplier (not to exceed actual cost or 50%, whichever 
is less 1.1
Hourly wage with fringe multiplier $8.97

Hourly overtime, if stipulated by requestor, excluding fringe $12.23
Cost for 15 minute interval $2.24
Number of 15 minute increments, rounded down 10
Total component labor cost $22.41

Hourly Rate of the lowest paid employee capable of 
perfomring the search, location, and examination $8.15
Fringe multiplier (not to exceed actual cost or 50%, whichever 
is less 1.1
Hourly wage with fringe multiplier $8.97

Hourly overtime, if stipulated by requestor, excluding fringe $12.23
Cost for 15 minute interval $2.24
Number of 15 minute increments, rounded down 10
Total component labor cost $22.41

Name of person/firm:

Hourly rate (may not exceed 6 times state minimum wage) $25.00
Cost for 15 minute interval $6.25
Number of 15 minute increments, rounded down 10
Total component labor cost $62.50

Hourly Rate of the lowest paid employee capable of 
perfomring the search, location, and examination $8.15
Fringe multiplier (not to exceed actual cost or 50%, whichever 
is less 1.10
Hourly wage with fringe multiplier $8.97

Hourly overtime, if stipulated by requestor, excluding fringe $12.23
Cost for 15 minute interval $2.24
Number of 15 minute increments, rounded down 10
Total component labor cost $22.41

FOIA Fee Itemization Form

Labor Costs - Employee Redaction

Labor Costs - Search, Location, and 
Examination of Records

Labor Costs - Contracted 
Redaction

Labor Costs - Duplication, Copying, 
and Transferring Records to Media

City Council Packet 39 June 8, 2015



Postage $1.00
Least expenisve delivery confirmation $1.00
Cost of expedited shipping, if requested $1.00
Cost of insurance, if requested $1.00
Total of component $4.00

Flash drives $1.00
Computuers discs $1.00
Other media $1.00
Total of component $3.00

Number of letter (8.5 x 11) sheets 10
Number of legal (8.5 x 14) sheets 10
Alt paper one cost $0.25
Alt paper one number of sheets 10
Alt paper two cost $0.25
Alt paper two number of sheets 10
Total of component $7.00

Less indigency reduction if applicable -$20.00
Less amount determined to be waived to benefit public 
interest $0.00
Late response reduction (.5% for each day, max 50%) $0.00
Total of component -$20.00

Deposit Less any good-faith deposit received $0.00

Total Due $123.74

Non-Paper Physical Media

Paper Copies

Waivers and Reductions

Mailing

City Council Packet 40 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 41 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 42 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 43 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 44 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 45 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 46 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 47 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 48 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 49 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 50 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 51 June 8, 2015



06/02/2015                                    CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK                                              

                                                         CHECK DATE FROM 05/01/2015 ‐ 05/31/2015                                              

Check Date Check Vendor Name Description Amount

Bank GEN CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNT

05/14/2015 40405 AARON LYONS ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 5/3/15 100.00

05/14/2015 40406 ALLIE BROTHERS INC UNFRM L/S SHRTS PAUL/TIE BARS/WSTL CHNS 284.46

05/14/2015 40407 AMERICAN MESSAGING MAY 2015 8108332563 8108331159 26.04

05/14/2015 40408 ARROW UNIFORM RENTAL MATS, SUPPLIES 32.20

UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 102.33

MATS, SUPPLIES 32.20

UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 102.33

269.06

05/14/2015 40409 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MUNDY 1/2 COST LIVE SCAN SERVICE MAINT. 1,747.50

05/14/2015 40410 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MUNDY JOINT INSP & PERMIT SERV. MARCH 2015 2,338.80

05/14/2015 40411 CHIEF SUPPLY CORPORATION NIK DRUG TEST KITS 110.65

NIK DRUG TEST KITS 49.98

160.63

05/14/2015 40412 CONSUMERS ENERGY 4/1‐4/30/15 4524 MORRISH RD 42.37

05/14/2015 40413 CONSUMERS ENERGY 4/1‐4/30/15 TRAFFIC LIGHTS 404.69

05/14/2015 40414 CONSUMERS ENERGY 4/1‐4/30/15 SIRENS 26.83

05/14/2015 40415 CONSUMERS ENERGY 4/1‐4/30/15 ELMS PARKING LOT 28.72

05/14/2015 40416 CONSUMERS ENERGY 4/7‐5/6/15 E 4125 ELMS RD 30.83

05/14/2015 40417 CONSUMERS ENERGY 4/1‐4/30/15 A 9099 MILLER RD 35.37

05/14/2015 40418 CONSUMERS ENERGY 4/3‐5/4/15 A 8095 CIVIC DR 859.11

05/14/2015 40419 CONSUMERS ENERGY 4/3‐5/1/15 A 5361 WINSHALL DR 22.74

05/14/2015 40420 CONSUMERS ENERGY 4/2‐5/1/15 E 8301 CAPPY LN 132.89

05/14/2015 40421 CONSUMERS ENERGY 4/3‐5/1/15 A 5257 WINSHALL DR 22.61

05/14/2015 40422 CONSUMERS ENERGY 4/3‐5/4/15 A 8083 CIVIC DR 723.91

05/14/2015 40423 CONSUMERS ENERGY 4/3‐5/4/15 A 5121 MORRISH RD 409.71

05/14/2015 40424 CONSUMERS ENERGY 4/3‐5/4/15 A 8059 FORTINO DR 63.43

05/14/2015 40425 CONSUMERS ENERGY 4/3‐5/4/15 A 8100 CIVIC DR 1,002.13

05/14/2015 40426 CONSUMERS ENERGY 4/7‐5/5/15 A 6425 MILLER PARK & RIDE 87.46

05/14/2015 40427 CREEK AUTO SERVICES LLC SERVICE POWER STEERING 13‐384 97.63

INSTALL TRANS LINES 05‐649 178.20

INSTALL VALVE STEM & MONITOR 10‐161 80.50

MONTHLY LOF/FRONT BRAKES 13‐384 289.70

646.03

05/14/2015 40428 CUMMINS BRIDGEWAY REPAIR GENERATOR/CAPPY LIFT STATION 500.40

05/14/2015 40429 D & D TRUCK & TRAILER PARTS !" HEATER HOS 100 FT 153.00

1" HEATER HOS 100 FT 153.00

306.00

05/14/2015 40430 D & G SIGNS LLC TEMP SIGN 99.47

05/14/2015 40431 DAVID KRUEGER SMALL CITIES MTG 5/6/15 DINNER/MILEAGE 31.68

05/14/2015 40432 DEANNA KORTH OFFICE SUPPLIES REIMBURSEMENT 43.62

REIMB FOR CALCULATOR C ESKEW 52.99

REIMB FOR ELECTION SUPPLIES 13.72

City Council Packet 52 June 8, 2015



110.33

05/14/2015 40433 DONALD KORTH RSLV ISSUE FIRE DEPT FAX/SETUP QVF MNTR  100.00

05/14/2015 40434 FAMILY FARM AND HOME INC COMPOST BAGS (6) 15.00

GREASE (10) 20.90

WEED & FEED (10) 189.90

WEED & FEED (3) 83.97

QUICK LINK (2) 5.38

GLOVES (2) 27.98

WHEELBARROW 69.99

YARD FORK (1)/BROOMS (4) 77.96

RETURN CLAW HAMMER (5.99)

485.09

05/14/2015 40435 FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE INSUR/EYEMED MAY 2015 VISION‐RETIREES(6)/COBRA(1) 38.83

05/14/2015 40436 FLINT WELDING SUPPLY FAX/CYLINDER COMPRESSED OXYGEN 5.00

05/14/2015 40437 GENESEE CTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER MISS DIG NOV 2014‐APR 2015 72.00

05/14/2015 40438 GILL ROYS HARDWARE OUTDOOR BOX/COVER/GLOVES 22.76

HUMIDIFIER TREATMENT 9.59

BOX CONNECTOR (4) 1.56

OUTDOOR BOX/BLANK COVER/DRILL BIT/FSTNRS 18.66

YARD WASTE BAGS 31.96

CONNECTOR (2)/COUPLING (1) 15.97

SPADE BIT 3.99

LIQUID ANT BAIT KILLER 34.36

4" ROUND COVER 15.92

FILTER 15.98

COIL CHAIN 43.60

P‐TRAP 3.99

WASTE TUBE/FLEX COUPLING/FASTENERS 12.47

HOSE END 19.99

EXTENSION TUBE 3.99

TRAP JBEND 10.99

COUPLING/PIPE CAP/TEST PLUG 23.17

FLEXIBLE J‐BEND 9.59

BATTERIES 16.57

COMBO EXT SCREW 1 BOX 22.99

BREAKER 5.99

RLR COVER (1)/CAULK (3) 11.96

FLUSH LEVER 5.59

EXTENSION SPRING 6.59

60 LB CONCRETE MIX (2) 9.58

KEY COPIES (3)/TAPE (1) 10.26

AJAX/COIL CHAIN 7.42

SOAP (6) 11.94

6" EXTENSION BIT 5.59

NUTS, BOLTS, SCREWS (2) 0.66

UPS SHIPPING 14.14

CLEANING SUPPLIES 37.28

RETURN TEST PLUG (5.99)

APRIL 2015 DISCOUNT (42.03)

417.08

05/14/2015 40439 GLC‐LAB LLC 4/22/15 DOMINIQUE WILKS 125.00

05/14/2015 40440 GOVERNMENT FORMS AND SUPPLIES LLC STAMPER (1)/MINUTE BOOK FILLER (250) 189.85

05/14/2015 40441 GRAND TRUNK WESTERN RAILROAD EML/RR CROSSING MAINT 5/1/15‐4/30/16 3,459.00

05/14/2015 40442 HYDRO DESIGNS INC WATER CROSS CONNECTION CONTROL AND COMPL 855.00

City Council Packet 53 June 8, 2015



05/14/2015 40443 INTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS OFFICE SUPPLIES 439.97

OFFICE SUPPLIES 486.32

CORRECTION TAPE 10 PK 6.99

933.28

05/14/2015 40444 JOSE A MIRELES MOW & TRIM CITY PROPERTIES 800.00

MOW & TRIM CITY PROPERTIES 800.00

1,600.00

05/14/2015 40445 KLEE MFG & DIST FLAGS (7)/VETERANS MEMORIAL 387.00

05/14/2015 40446 LANDMARK APPRAISAL CO MAY 2015 ASSESSOR SERVICES OCT 1 2014‐JU 2,370.48

05/14/2015 40447 LIQUIFORCE SEWER SERVICES SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM INSPECTIONS AND RE 21,193.00

05/14/2015 40448 LYNETTE GERNIER UB REFUND 4432 MORRISH 12.65

05/14/2015 40449 MICHIGAN METER TECHNOLOGY GRP. INC SHIPPING ON INVOICE 94298 9.80

05/14/2015 40450 MICHIGAN PIPE AND VALVE CLAMP (1)/CORP BUSH (1)/CORP STOP (4) 465.97

05/14/2015 40451 MICHIGAN POLICE EQUIPMENT COMPANY RIFLE MAGS (12) 224.00

05/14/2015 40452 MID MICHIGAN MANUFACTURING JETTED AND CLEANED SEWER LINES 1,625.00

05/14/2015 40453 MUNICIPAL CODE CORP. UPDATING CODE OF ORDINANCES 6,851.69

05/14/2015 40454 MY‐CAN LLC PORTAJON RENTAL 4/28‐5/26/15 ELMS&WINSHA 290.00

05/14/2015 40455 PARAGON LABORATORIES INC EML/WATER SAMPLES 172.50

05/14/2015 40456 PHYSIO‐CONTROL INC LIFE PACK AED 2,005.00

05/14/2015 40457 PLAY ENVIRONMENTS INC. TRAPESE RING (2) 65.00

05/14/2015 40458 RICHARD ABRAMS SMALL CITIES MTG DINNER/MILEAGE 5/6/14 30.53

05/14/2015 40459 ROYALTY  SERVICES INC TOPSOIL 409.00

05/14/2015 40460 RWS OF MID MICHIGAN APRIL 2015/FY15 GARBAGE/RECYCLING/YARD W 20,847.36

05/14/2015 40461 SEPLA REGISTRATION SEPLA CONF SZMANSKY 6/16‐18 375.00

05/14/2015 40462 SIMEN FIGURA & PARKER PLC APRIL 2015 GEN'L/TRAFFIC/ORDIN 2,341.00

05/14/2015 40463 STATE OF MICHIGAN‐DEQ WTR DRINKING WATER LAB TESTING 3/19‐4/29/15 64.00

05/14/2015 40464 SUBURBAN AUTO SUPPLY BLADE FUSE 2.99

LIFT SUPPORT (2) 41.16

OIL FILTER (2) 7.98

10W30 5Q OIL (2) 33.98

86.11

05/14/2015 40465 SUPER FLITE OIL CO INC 4/1‐4/30/15 FUEL USAGE ‐ DPW 713.21

05/14/2015 40466 SUPER FLITE OIL CO INC 4/1‐4/30/15 FUEL USAGE ‐ POLICE 1,659.71

05/14/2015 40467 SWARTZ CREEK AREA FIRE DEPT. APRIL 2015 MONTHLY RUNS 2,659.66

05/14/2015 40468 SWARTZ CREEK ELEVATOR 50 LBS GRASS SEED 90.00

ROUND UP 80.00

170.00

05/14/2015 40469 VERIZON WIRELESS APRIL 2015 MONTHLY INVOICE 374.78

05/14/2015 40470 VERMEER OF MICHIGAN BLADE SHARPENING/CHIPPER 46.48

05/14/2015 40471 VIEW NEWSPAPER GROUP MEDICAL MARIJUANA MORATORIUM 4/25/15 93.00

05/14/2015 40472 VILLAGE CLEANERS UNIFORM CLEANING APRIL 2015 88.00

05/21/2015 40473 A+ SUPPLY CO INC LIGHT 55.69

05/21/2015 40474 ACE OUTDOOR SERVICES LLC RED MULCH 62.00

05/21/2015 40475 ARROW UNIFORM RENTAL UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 116.80

MATS, SUPPLIES 32.20

149.00

05/21/2015 40476 BLUE CARE NETWORK‐EAST MI JUNE 2015 RETIREE MED INS KELLY 778.76

City Council Packet 54 June 8, 2015



JUNE 2015 RETIREE MED INS O'BRIEN 1,361.59

JUNE 2015 RETIREE MED INS SHANNON 818.12

JUNE 2015 RETIREE MED INS CLOLINGER 1,370.06

JUNE 2015 COBRA INS BUECHE 793.14

5,121.67

05/21/2015 40477 BRENDA WARNER REFUND DEPOSIT 45 SOMERSET (FKA KINGLSEY 75.00

05/21/2015 40478 CONSUMERS ENERGY 4/2‐5/1/15 A 8499 MILLER RD 22.98

05/21/2015 40479 CONSUMERS ENERGY 4/3‐5/4/15 A 8011 MILLER RD 19.18

05/21/2015 40480 CONSUMERS ENERGY 4/3‐5/1/15 A WINSHALL RESTROOMS 33.86

05/21/2015 40481 CONSUMERS ENERGY 4/7‐5/6/15 A 4125 ELMS RD PAVILION 12.46

05/21/2015 40482 DELTA DENTAL PLAN JUNE 2015 DENTAL RETIREES(7)/COBRA(1) 542.86

05/21/2015 40483 DONALD KORTH UPDTD WRKSTNS/INSTALL PTR/MV COMPUTRS 750.00

05/21/2015 40484 FUNTASTIC INFLATABLES EML/MOVIE NIGHT 6/12/15 250.00

05/21/2015 40485 INTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS BINDING SYSTEM/DISK DRIVE 3PK/LABELS 51.54

SURGE OUTLET (8) 196.24

247.78

05/21/2015 40486 JANINE COOL ELMS PARK DEPOSIT REFUND 5/9/15 100.00

05/21/2015 40487 JOSE A MIRELES MOW & TRIM CITY PROPERTIES/RES. LOTS (8) 1,015.00

05/21/2015 40488 JOYCE BOUCHARD CANCEL PARK RESERVATION 7‐19/15 150.00

05/21/2015 40489 MICHIGAN PIPE AND VALVE REPAIR CLAMP (2) 285.52

05/21/2015 40490 OFFICE DEPOT CREDIT PLAN LCD MONITORS (4) 359.96

DVI CABLES (2) 21.98

381.94

05/21/2015 40491 OHM ADVISORS MILLER RD‐MORRISH TO ELMS 1,707.36

05/21/2015 40492 OHM ADVISORS MILLER RD‐TALLMADGE TO S DYE 1,643.54

05/21/2015 40493 PITNEY BOWES INC. RENTAL CHARGES 2/28‐5/30/15 158.34

05/21/2015 40494 PLAY ENVIRONMENTS INC. PLAYGROUND SAFETY SURFACE 2,250.00

05/21/2015 40495 SHULTS EQUIPMENT LLC CARBIDE BLADE (6) 1,665.48

05/21/2015 40496 UNUM LIFE INSURANCE JUNE 15 RETIREE LIFE INS CLOLINGER/SHANN 18.63

05/28/2015 40497 ARROW UNIFORM RENTAL UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 102.33

MATS, SUPPLIES 32.20

134.53

05/28/2015 40498 BOYNE HIGHLAND RESORT HOTEL ROOM (2)/OFC PAUL&CHIEF CLOLINGER  295.68

05/28/2015 40499 BS & A SOFTWARE ANNUAL MAINT. 5/1/15‐5/1/16 4,495.00

05/28/2015 40500 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MUNDY JOINT INSP & PERMIT SERV APRIL 2015 4,358.30

05/28/2015 40501 COMCAST BUSINESS 5/26‐6/25/15 CITY HALL 286.75

05/28/2015 40502 GEN CTY ROAD COMMISSION APRIL 2015 S‐MTCE & OPERATIONS 12.93

05/28/2015 40503 GENESEE CTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER COMM/READY TO SERVE 3/27‐4/29/15 113,914.08

05/28/2015 40504 JOSE A MIRELES MOW & TRIM CITY PROPERTIES/RES. (2) 890.00

05/28/2015 40505 MICHAEL R SHUMAKER JAN‐APRIL 2015 REIMB RETIREE MEDICAL 928.00

05/28/2015 40506 MICHIGAN PIPE AND VALVE CURB STOP (4) 305.38

05/28/2015 40507 PUMMILL PRINT SERVICES LC UB BILLS (10,000) 465.91

05/28/2015 40508 SALLY M ADAMS JAN‐JUNE 2015 REIMB RETIREE MEDICAL 1,392.00

GEN TOTALS:

Total of 104 Disbursements: 228,620.11

City Council Packet 55 June 8, 2015



05/29/2015                            REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK                                      

                                                                               PERIOD ENDING 05/31/2015                                                      

2014‐15 YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE

AMENDED 05/29/2015 BALANCE % BDGT

GL NUMBER BUDGET NORMAL (ABNORMAL) NORMAL (ABNORMAL) USED

Fund 101 ‐ General Fund

TOTAL REVENUES 2,620,887.22 2,304,962.84 315,924.38 87.95

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,751,517.94 2,124,833.41 626,684.53 77.22

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (130,630.72)  

Fund 202 ‐ Major Street Fund

TOTAL REVENUES 2,068,105.00 309,625.66 1,758,479.34 14.97

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,378,751.00 189,532.16 2,189,218.84 7.97

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (310,646.00)  

Fund 203 ‐ Local Street Fund

TOTAL REVENUES 154,846.02 139,624.00 15,222.02 90.17

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 154,260.02 85,610.85 68,649.17 55.50

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 586.00  

Fund 226 ‐ Garbage Fund

TOTAL REVENUES 375,434.28 362,018.94 13,415.34 96.43

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 445,291.60 339,498.05 105,793.55 76.24

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (69,857.32)  

Fund 248 ‐ Downtown Development Fund

TOTAL REVENUES 74,648.00 77,488.47 (2,840.47) 103.81

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 75,509.00 74,093.94 1,415.06 98.13

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (861.00)  

Fund 265 ‐ Drug Enforcement Fund

TOTAL REVENUES 4,776.51 7,325.77 (2,549.26) 153.37

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 7,850.60 9,813.26 (1,962.66) 125.00

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (3,074.09)  

Fund 350 ‐ City Hall Debt Fund

TOTAL REVENUES 78,625.00 78,622.02 2.98 100.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 80,325.00 78,855.00 1,470.00 98.17

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (1,700.00)  

Fund 402 ‐ Fire Equip Replacement Fund

TOTAL REVENUES 20,050.00 20,001.91 48.09 99.76

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 20,050.00  

City Council Packet 56 June 8, 2015



05/29/2015                            REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK                                      

                                                                               PERIOD ENDING 05/31/2015                                                      

2014‐15 YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE

AMENDED 05/29/2015 BALANCE % BDGT

GL NUMBER BUDGET NORMAL (ABNORMAL) NORMAL (ABNORMAL) USED

Fund 590 ‐ Water Supply Fund

TOTAL REVENUES 1,673,916.00 1,277,040.89 396,875.11 76.29

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,830,014.00 1,346,048.92 483,965.08 73.55

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (156,098.00)  

Fund 591 ‐ Sanitary Sewer Fund

TOTAL REVENUES 1,200,350.00 926,763.96 273,586.04 77.21

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,456,600.00 843,906.85 612,693.15 57.94

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (256,250.00)  

Fund 661 ‐ Motor Pool Fund:

TOTAL REVENUES 243,036.50 219,444.46 23,592.04 90.29

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 251,976.36 160,706.25 91,270.11 63.78

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (8,939.86)  

Fund 865 ‐ Sidewalks:

TOTAL REVENUES 12,500.00 8,814.94 3,685.06 70.52

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 12,500.00 8,950.94 3,549.06 71.61

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 0.00  

Fund 866 ‐ Weed Fund

TOTAL REVENUES 6,350.00 6,350.00 0.00 100.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,400.00 920.00 480.00 65.71

NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 4,950.00  

City Council Packet 57 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 58 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 59 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 60 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 61 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 62 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 63 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 64 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 65 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 66 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 67 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 68 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 69 June 8, 2015



Ingalls Morris
h

Wade

Miller

H
ol

la
nd

H
ayes

1s
t

City of  Swartz Creek
0 0.015 0.03 0.045 0.060.0075

Miles ®
City Council Packet 70 June 8, 2015



He
rit

ag
e

H

e r ita

ge Bainbridge

H
er

ita
ge

City of  Swartz Creek
0 0.01 0.02 0.03 0.040.005

Miles ®
City Council Packet 71 June 8, 2015



Oakview

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

Don Shenk

Worchester

Helm
sley

Birc
hc

re
st

Va
lle

yv
ie

w

Se
ym

ou
r

G
re

en
le

af

C
ardigan

Young

Durwood

City of  Swartz Creek
0 0.035 0.07 0.105 0.140.0175

Miles ®
City Council Packet 72 June 8, 2015



 
1 

 CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK 
 
 ORDINANCE NO. _______ 
 
 An ordinance to bring the City into conformity with state law regarding the 
regulation of fireworks; to repeal conflicting ordinances on the same subject matter; and 
to provide penalties for violations thereof. 
        
THE CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK ORDAINS: 
 
Section 1. Adoption of Fireworks Ordinance. 
 
 The City Council hereby adopts an ordinance regulating fireworks to read as 
follows: 
 
 Sec. 1. Definitions. 
 
 For purposes of this Ordinance, the following definitions shall apply: 
 
 1. Articles pyrotechnic:  pyrotechnic devices for professional use that are 

similar to consumer fireworks in the chemical composition and 
construction but not intended for consumer use, that meet the weight limits 
for consumer fireworks but are not labeled as such, and that are classified 
as UN0431 or UN0432 under 49 CFR 172.101. 

 
 2. APA:  American Pyrotechnics Association. 
 
 3. Consumer fireworks:  fireworks devices that are designed to produce 

visible effects by combustion, that are required to comply with the 
construction, chemical composition and labeling regulations promulgated 
by the United States consumer product safety commission under 16 CFR 
parts 1500 and 1507, and that are listed in APA standard 87-1, 3.1.2, 
3.1.3 or 3.5   Consumer fireworks does not include low-impact fireworks.  

 
 4. Department:  Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs (LARA), 

State of Michigan. 
 
 5. Display fireworks:   large fireworks devices that are explosive materials 

intended for use in fireworks displays and designed to produce visible or 
audible effect by combustion, deflagration, or detonation as provided in 27 
CFR 555.11, 49 CFR 162 and APA standard 87-1, 4.1. 

 

City Council Packet 73 June 8, 2015



 
2 

 6. Firework or fireworks:  any composition or device, except for a starting 
pistol, a flare gun or a flare, designed for the purpose of producing a 
visible or audible effect by combustion, deflagration, or detonation.  
Fireworks consist of consumer fireworks, low-impact fireworks, articles 
pyrotechnic, display fireworks and special effects. 

 
 7. Low Impact Fireworks: ground and handheld sparkling devices at that 

phrase is defined under APA standard 87-1, 3.1, 3.1.1.1 to 3.1.1.8 and 
3.5. 

 
 8. Minor:  individual who is less than 18 years old. 
 
 9. National holiday:   A national holiday is defined in 5 USC 6103 and 

includes:  New Year’s Day (January ); Martin Luther King Jr. Day (third 
Monday in January); Washington’s Birthday (third Monday in February); 
Memorial Day (last Monday in May); Independence Day (July 4); Labor 
Day (first Monday in September); Columbus Day (second Monday in 
October); Veterans Day (November 11); Thanksgiving Day (fourth 
Thursday in November); Christmas Day (December 25).  

 
 10. NFPA:  National Fire Protection Association. 
 
 11. Novelties:  as defined under APA standard 87-1, 3.2, 3.2.1, 3.2.2, 3.2.3, 

3.2.4 and 3.2.5.and all of the following: 
 
  (a) Toy plastic or paper caps for toy pistols in sheets, strips, rolls or 

individual caps containing not more than .25 of a grain of explosive 
content per cap, in packages labeled to indicate the maximum 
explosive content per cup. 

   
  (b) Toy pistols, toy cannons, toy canes, toy trick noisemakers, and toy 

guns in which toy caps as described in the above paragraph are 
use, that are constructed so that the nad cannot come in contact 
with the cap when in place for the explosion, and that are not 
designed to break apart or be separated so as to form a missile by 
the explosion. 

   
  © Flitter sparklers in paper tubes not exceeding 1/8 inch in diameter. 
  
 12. Person: individual, agent, association, charitable organization, company, 

limited liability company, corporation, labor organization, legal 
representative, partnership, unincorporated organization, or any other 
legal or commercial entity.  

 

City Council Packet 74 June 8, 2015



 
3 

 13. Special effects:  a combination of chemical elements or chemical 
compounds capable of burning independently of the oxygen of the 
atmosphere and designed and intended to produce an audible, visual, 
mechanical, or thermal effect as in integral part of a motion picture, radio, 
television, theatrical or opera production or live entertainment. 

 
 Sec. 2. Novelties. 
 

This Ordinance does not apply to and does not regulate the use of Novelties in 
the City.  
 
 Sec.3.  Consumer Fireworks. 
 
 (A) Consumer fireworks may be used in the City on the day proceeding, the 

day of and the day after a national holiday without restriction.  
 
 (B) At any time other than the day preceding, the day of and/or the day after a 

national holiday consumer fireworks may be used in the City subject to the 
following requirements and restrictions: 

 
  (1) On Sundays through Thursdays, consumer fireworks may be used 

up to 10 p.m. 
 
  (2) On Fridays and Saturdays, consumer fireworks may be used up to 

midnight. 
  
  (3) Consumer fireworks shall not be used if a burn ban is in effect. 
 
 (C) A person shall not ignite, discharge or use consumer fireworks on public 

property, school property, church property or the property of another 
person, without that person or organization’s express permission to use 
the consumer fireworks on those premises.    

 
 (D) A person shall not use consumer fireworks or low impact fireworks while 

under the influence of alcoholic liquor, a controlled substance or a 
combination of alcoholic liquor and a controlled substance.  

 
 (E) Consumer fireworks shall only be used in accordance with all applicable 

local, state and federal laws. 
 
 Sec. 4. Pyrotechnic and Display Fireworks. 
 
 (A) The City may permit articles pyrotechnic, display fireworks and special 

effect fireworks pursuant to the provisions of MCL 28.451, et seq and this 
Ordinance. 

City Council Packet 75 June 8, 2015



 
4 

 
 (B) Any person wishing to conduct an articles pyrotechnic, display fireworks or 

special effects display shall, at least 45 days prior to any display, submit 
an application on a form furnished by the City, pay the required fee and 
shall secure permission from the City prior to any such fireworks display.  

 
 (C) The site plan of the area where the articles pyrotechnic, display fireworks 

or special effects display is to be conducted shall be submitted with the 
application.  The site plan shall set forth all structures in the area and 
within the discharge site fallout area.  The site plan shall furthermore set 
forth the distance separating any fireworks and any spectator viewing 
areas.  All site plans shall be forwarded to the Fire Chief and/or his 
designated alternate for approval, including any recommended conditions, 
prior to coming before the City Council for its approval.  

 
 (D) A copy of any required state or federal permit for the fireworks display 

shall be submitted with the application. 
 
 (E) Proof of insurance conforming the requirements of this Ordinance and PA 

256 of 211 shall be submitted with the application. 
 
 (F) The application shall include information as to the competency and 

qualifications of the fireworks display operators, as required by NFPA 
1123. 

 
 (F) The City shall approve an application for an articles pyrotechnic, display 

fireworks or special effects display if it finds that all of the following 
standards are satisfied: 

 
  (1) The application and accompanying documentation is complete and 

conforms to the requirements of this Ordinance. 
 
  (2) The operator of the fireworks display is competent and qualified to 

conduct the fireworks display, per NFPA 1123. 
 
  (3) The Fire Chief or his/her designated alternate has approved the 

application and site plan.  
 
  (4) The fireworks display will not have an adverse effect upon public 

safety. 
 
  (5) The time, duration, location of the fireworks or special effects 

display will not, due to noise and other factors, unreasonably 
disturb the peace of persons residing within the vicinity.  

  (6) The City, in approving an application hereunder, shall have the 

City Council Packet 76 June 8, 2015



 
5 

authority to impose such conditions as it determines in its sole 
reasonable discretion are necessary to assure that the fireworks 
display will satisfy the above standards. 

 
 (G) Requirements and Restrictions. 
 

a. The person conducting the fireworks display shall follow NFPA 
1123 for fireworks display and/or the City requirements set forth 
herein, whichever are more restrictive. 

 
b. A minimum safe area of 250 feet radius, plus an additional 70 feet 

radius for each inch by which the fireworks shell exceeds 3 inches 
in diameter shall be required.   The City shall have the authority to 
grant a variance from this requirement where it determines in its 
sole reasonable discretion that, given 1) the nature of the subject 
site, 2) the nature of the surrounding area and/or 3) the nature of 
the proposed fireworks display, that a variance will not have a 
material adverse impact on public safety.  In no event, however, 
shall the applicant fail to comply with the minimum requirements of 
NFPA 1123. 

 
c. The applicant shall maintain personal injury liability 

insurance/property damage liability insurance in the amount of 
$1,000,000 for each event.   The City shall be named as an 
additional insured on the insurance policy. 

 
d. The City shall not issue a permit to a nonresident person until the 

person has appointed in writing a member of the state bar or a 
resident agent to be the person’s legal representative upon whom 
all process in an action or proceeding against the person may be 
served.  

 
e. The applicant shall be responsible for all shells being fired.  In the 

event one or more of the shells does not explode, the applicant 
shall secure the area until the unexploded shell(s) is found and 
properly disposed of. 

 
f. The consumption of alcohol immediately prior to and during the 

fireworks display by any person involved in conducting the display 
is prohibited. 

 
g. A fireworks display conducted hereunder shall conform with all 

specifications set forth in the approved application and site plan, as 
well as with any conditions imposed by the City in granting such 
approval. 

City Council Packet 77 June 8, 2015



 
6 

 
h. The applicant shall cause the site of the fireworks display to be 

cleaned up within 24 hours after the fireworks display has ended.  
 

i. A permit is not transferable and shall not be granted to a minor. 
  

Sec. 5. Violations; penalties. 
 
 Any person that violates any provision of this Ordinance shall be deemed 
responsible for a municipal civil infraction and fined in accordance with the following 
schedule:  

Minimum  Maximum 
Fine   Fine 

1st offense within 3 year period    $ 75.00    $500.00 
2nd offense within 3 year period*   $ 150.00     $500.00 
3rd offense within 3 year period*   $ 325.00       $500.00 
4th offense within 3 year period*   $ 500.00       $500.00 

 
 Additionally, the violator shall pay costs which may include all expenses, direct 
and indirect, which the City incurs in enforcing this Ordinance. 
 
 In addition, the City shall have the right to proceed in any court of competent 
jurisdiction for the purpose of obtaining an injunction, restraining order or other 
appropriate remedy to compel compliance with this Ordinance.   Each day that a 
violation of this Ordinance continues to exist shall constitute a separate violation of this 
Ordinance.   
 
Section 2. Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances. 
 
 The City Council hereby repeals all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict 
herewith. 
 
Section 3. Effective Date. 
 
 This Ordinance shall take effect 30 days after publication following its adoption. 
 
 At a regular meeting of the City Council of Swartz Creek held on the __________ 
day of ___________, 2015, ________________ moved for adoption of the foregoing 
ordinance and ________________ supported the motion. 
 
Voting for: 
 
Voting against: 
 
The Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 

City Council Packet 78 June 8, 2015



 
7 

 
 
      _________________________________ 
      David Krueger 
      Mayor 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Juanita Aguilar 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 CERTIFICATION 
 
The foregoing is a true copy of Ordinance No. _____ which was enacted by the Swartz 
Creek City Council at a regular meeting held on the ________ day of June, 2015. 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Juanita Aguilar 
      City Clerk  
 
 

City Council Packet 79 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 80 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 81 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 82 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 83 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 84 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 85 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 86 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 87 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 88 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 89 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 90 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 91 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 92 June 8, 2015



Miller
Bristol

City of  Swartz Creek
0 0.03 0.06 0.09 0.120.015

Miles ®Signal MapCity Council Packet 93 June 8, 2015

azettel
Callout
Signal Location 1

azettel
Callout
Signal Location 2



Norko

D
ye

City of  Swartz Creek
0 0.02 0.04 0.06 0.080.01

Miles® 3386 Dye RoadCity Council Packet 94 June 8, 2015

azettel
Callout
City Owned

azettel
Callout
3386 Dye

azettel
Callout
Adjacent Owner

azettel
Text Box
GM Operations

azettel
Text Box
GM Entrance



City Council Packet 95 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 96 June 8, 2015

azettel
Callout
These area was relocated to be near Taco Bell as illustrated in 11/17/15 plans



City Council Packet 97 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 98 June 8, 2015

azettel
Rectangle



City Council Packet 99 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 100 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 101 June 8, 2015



City Council Packet 102 June 8, 2015

azettel
Text Box
Site Plan, dated November 17, 2010

azettel
Callout
Outdoor sales areas

azettel
Line

azettel
Line



City Council Packet 103 June 8, 2015



  

 

City Council Packet 104 June 8, 2015



  

 

City Council Packet 105 June 8, 2015


	2015-06-08, Council Mtg Template
	TO:  Honorable Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem & Council Members
	ROUTINE BUSINESS – REVISITED ISSUES / PROJECTS

	2015-5-26 May 26 Council Minutes
	FOIA Summary
	FOIA Procedures
	FOIA Fee Form
	Sheet1

	PD Report
	May 2015 DPS Reports
	Check Register
	Revenue  Expense Report May  2015
	Bldg Report
	Tax Sale List
	2015 Tax Sale Central
	2015 Tax Sale East
	2015 Tax Sale West
	Fireworks Ordinance
	Signal Study
	Signal Map
	3398 Dye Map
	FFH Scan
	FFH Site Plan
	Comcast
	MML Insurance Summary



